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KPMG LLP
Suite 2900
909 Poydras Street

New Orleans, LA 70112

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Rain Carbon Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rain Carbon Inc. and its subsidiaries,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flows for each of the
years then ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Rain Carbon Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

KPMe LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
February 22, 2018




Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars)
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Trade and other receivables (less allowance for doubtful

accounts of $750 in 2017 and $671 in 2016)
Due from affiliated companies
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Current tax receivables

Total current assets

Investments

Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Due to affiliated companies

Accrued liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Short term and current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Accrued postretirement benefit obligation
Other non-current liabilities ‘
Deferred income tax liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)

Stockholder's equity
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
RCI stockholder's equity

Non-controlling interests
Total stockholder's equity
Total liabilities and equity

2017 2016

$ 115238 $ 127,575
6,140 2,172
278,059 156,506
17,391 18,072
298,695 169,345
40,095 31,085
2,923 4,545
758,541 509,300
12,636 11,024
455,670 419,424
641,249 596,936
194,049 207,152
20,301 19,907
5,991 1,729

$ 2,088,437  $1,765,472
$ 179,006 $ 92,197
299 1,529

89,596 69,989
11,564 7,793
50,369 35,954
330,834 207,462
1,015,300 972,062
134,937 109,493
20,672 22,294
65,673 81,243
305,087 305,087
(149,397) (181,019)
324,885 220,686
480,575 344,754
40,446 28,164
521,021 372,918

$ 2,088,437  $1,765,472

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Rewvenue $ 1,592,983 $1,221,944
Cost of goods sold 1,179,052 952,778
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 74,661 57,569
Depreciation and amortization 103,735 98,701
Other operating income 971 1,220
Operating income 236,506 114,116
Interest expense, net 91,689 88,693
Gain on foreign currency transactions, net (12,220) (6,033)
Other (income) expense, net 9,595 (3,888)
Income before income taxes 147,442 35,344
Income tax expense (benefit), net 29,020 (13,241)
Net income 118,422 48,585
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 11,337 6,240
Net income attributable to RCI stockholders $ 107,085 $ 42,345

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (loss)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Net income $ 118,422 § 48,585
Changes in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 36,699 (15,256)
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans
Net actuarial loss (net of tax) (2,549) (10,083)
Less: Amortization of prior senice cost
included in net periodic pension cost 76 81
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans (2,473) (10,002)
Other (1,845) -
Total comprehensive income 150,803 23,327
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 12,281 6,504
Comprehensive income attributable to RCI stockholder's $ 138,522 $ 16,823

Accumulated other Comprehensive loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss is disclosed as a separate component of Stockholder’s equity in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31,
2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

Foreign Defined
Curre nt_;y Bene.ﬂt Other Total
Translation Pension
(in thousands of dollars) Adjustments ltems

Ending balance December 31,2015 $ (145662) $ (9,036) $ (443) § (155,141)

Net current period change (15,876) (10,002) - (25,878)
Ending balance December 31, 2016 $ (161,538) $ (19,038) § (443) $ (181,019)
Net current period change 35,940 (2,473) (1,845) 31,622

Ending balance December 31,2017 $ (125598) §$ (21,511) § (2,288) $ (149,397)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars)

Balances at December 31, 2015
Dividends declared
Transfer to Non-controlling interest
Capital contribution
Netincome
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Net change in pension and other
postretirement benefits
Balances at December 31,2016
Dividends declared
Netincome
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Net change in pension and other
postretirement benefits
Other
Balances at December 31, 2017

Accumulated
Other

Additional = Comprehensive Retained  Noncontrolling
Paid-in capital Income (Loss) Earnings Interests Total
$ 275087 § (155,141) $ 219540 § 12,817 § 352,303
- - (32,627) - (32,627)
- - (8,928) 8,928 -
30,000 - - - 30,000
- - 42,345 6,240 48,585
- (15,876) 356 179 (15,341)
- (10,002) - - (10,002)
$ 305,087 § (181,019) § 220686 $ 28,164 $ 372,918
N - (2,700) - (2,700)
- - 107,085 11,337 118,422
- 35,940 (186) 945 36,699
- (2,473) - - (2,473)
- (1,845) - - (1,845)
$ 305,087 $ (149,397) $ 324885 $ 40,446 $ 521,021

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 118,422 $ 48,585
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 103,735 98,701
Amortization of debt issuance cost 9,477 5,204
Premium on redemption of bonds 5,405 -
Deferred income tax benefit (32,503) (51,676)
Gain on re-purchase of debt notes - (2,624)
Exchange gain on monetary items (18,052) (4,666)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 79 717)
Gain in Equity affiliated companies (137) (616)
Other non cash items 13,824 (261)
Changes in other liabilities 614 (4,840)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade, current tax and other receivables (102,730) 21,350
Due from affiliated companies 787 2,727
Inventories (112,201) 53,599
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (36,710) (34,342)
Trade and other payables 46,303 12,935
Due to affiliated companies (1,569) (183)
Current tax and accrued liabilities 14,365 (48,167)
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,109 95,009
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from Sale of property plant and equipment 2,451 589
Capital expenditures (39,134) (41,096)
Change in restricted cash (3,695) 41)
Net cash used in investing activties (40,378) (40,548)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 545,897 1,338
Proceeds from short-term debt 116,396 85,249
Principal payments on long-term debt including revolver (5647,639) (20,595)
Principal payments on short-term debt (92,018) (84,115)
Proceeds from capital contribution - 30,000
Payments of financing cost (9,833) -
Dividends paid (including tax on dividend) (2,700) (32,627)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 10,103 (20,750)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 8,829 (3,461)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (12,337) 30,250
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of the year 127,575 97,325
End of the year $ 115,238 $ 127,575
Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 81,757 $ 101,212
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 57,356 42,384

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

1. Organization and Background

Rain Carbon Inc. (the “Company” or “RCI”") has been incorporated to carry on the businesses of
producing calcined petroleum coke (CPC), trading metallic and/or nonmetallic substances, and
investing in entities engaged in such businesses.

RCl is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Commodities (USA) Inc (‘RCUSA"), which in turn is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Industries Limited (“RIL” or “the ultimate holding Company”), a
company incorporated in India and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company was originally incorporated as a Limited
Liability Company in the state of Delaware, United States of America on September 15, 2010.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company has been converted into a Delaware
Corporation. Upon completion of the conversion process, the authorized share capital of the
Company consists of 5,000 shares (see note 11 for additional information).

The Company along with its subsidiaries ("the Group" or "Rain Group") operates in two business
segments Carbon and Chemicals. The Carbon business is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and sales of Carbon Products. Carbon Products comprise Calcined Petroleum
Coke (“CPC”), Coal Tar Pitch (“CTP”), Green Petroleum Coke (“GPC"), Co-generated Energy,
and other derivatives of Coal Tar distillation. The Chemicals segment includes the downstream
operations of Coal Tar distillation which comprise of Resins, Modifiers, Super Plasticizers, and
other specialty products.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of RCI and its
majority-owned subsidiaries that are required to be consolidated. All inter-company transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The equity method is used to account for investments in affiliates in which the Group has the
ability to exercise significant influence over the affiliates’ operating and financial policies. When
the Group does not have the ability to exercise significant influence, the investment is classified
as available-for-sale under fair value method, if fair value is readily determinable or under cost
method, if fair value is not readily determinable.

The Group has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through February 22, 2018, which
is the date the consolidated financial statements were made available for issuance. Any material
subsequent events that occurred during this time have been properly recognized or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with
the current year’s classification/disclosure. These reclassifications have not changed the results
of operations of prior periods.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (US GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from such estimates and assumptions; include allowance for doubtful
accounts, estimated obsolescence or excess inventory, valuation of long lived assets and
goodwill, valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, environmental liabilities, post retirement
and pension obligations, commitments and contingencies and valuation of derivatives.



Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are reported in US dollars. The translation
from the respective functional currencies to the US dollar is performed using the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet dates for assets and liabilities and average exchange rates
prevailing during the reporting periods for revenue, costs, and expenses.

Adjustments resulting from such translation are accumulated and reported as other
comprehensive income (loss), a separate component of equity.

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year-end rates. The resulting gain/loss along with the realized gain/loss on account of
foreign currency transactions are accounted for in the consolidated statements of operations.

Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid, short-term investments with original maturities of less than three months when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include $11,628
and $4,004 thousands of certificates of deposit with an initial term of less than three months at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Group recognizes revenue, net of trade discounts, sales taxes, and allowances, based on
the shipping terms, when title and risk of ownership pass to the customer, collection of the
relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and the sales
price is fixed and determinable.

Shipping and other transportation costs charged to buyers are recorded in both sales and cost
of sales.

Trade Receivable

The Group grants credit to its customers based on periodic credit evaluations of customers’
financial condition and generally does not require collateral, but may require letters of credit for
certain international sales. The Group believes its credit risk related to trade receivable is
minimal. The Group estimates its bad debt exposure based upon a customer-by-customer
analysis of its trade receivable balances each period and records a bad debt provision for trade
receivable it believes it may not collect in full.

Trade receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts
collected on trade receivable are included in net cash provided by operating activities in the
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value and consist principally of raw
material, finished goods, work in progress, and materials and supplies. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. The Group
reviews its inventories balances and writes down its inventories for estimated obsolescence or
excess inventories equal to the difference between the cost of inventories and the estimated
market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. The cost of
Inventory includes production costs and depreciation expense.



Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment is carried at cost and includes improvements, which significantly
increase capacities or extend useful lives of existing plant and equipment and consists primarily
of buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, furnishings and land, which is being
depreciated on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 1-59 years (except for land).
When fixed assets are sold or retired, cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts, and gains or losses are recorded in consolidated statements of operations.

Plant and equipment held under capital leases are stated at the present value of minimum lease
payments and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or

estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group evaluates impairment of its property, plant, and equipment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered.
If circumstances require an asset be tested for possible impairment, the Group first compares
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset to the carrying value of the asset.
If the carrying value of the long-lived asset is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis,
impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value. Fair value
is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models,
quoted market values, and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary. The
Group carried out the impairment analysis during 2017 and 2016 and no impairment has been
identified in 2017 and 2016.

Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets, other than goodwill and in process research and development
(“IPR&D"), are recorded at cost. Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives are amortized

on a systematic basis over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are:

Customer contracts 9-15 years
Supply contracts 10 years
Favorable contracts 13 years
Technology rights 8-12 years
Trade names 15 years
IPR&D 15 years
Others 3-20 years

Non-product specific trade names have an indefinite useful life.

The Group evaluates impairment of its intangible assets on an individual basis whenever
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recovered. Intangible assets deemed
to be impaired are written down to their fair value using discounted cash flows and, if available,
comparable market values. The Group carried out the impairment analysis during 2017 and 2016
and no impairment has been identified in 2017 and 2016.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents cost in excess of fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in business
combinations. Goodwill is reviewed for potential impairment at least annually or more frequently
if circumstances indicate that a potential impairment has occurred.

Our annual testing of goodwill is based on carrying value and our estimate of fair value as of
November 30.



Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

In testing goodwill for impairment an entity has the option to perform a qualitative assessment to
determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount prior to performing the two-step goodwill impairment test. If this is the case, the
two-step goodwill impairment test is required. If it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, the two-step goodwill impairment test is not
required.

if the two-step goodwill impairment test is required, first, the fair value of the reporting unit is
compared with its carrying amount (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit
and the entity must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). Under step two, an
impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s
goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is
determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase
price allocation and the residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the
reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow
analysis. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, step two does not
need to be performed.

The group has performed an assessment of goodwill during 2017 and 2016 and determined that
it is not more likely than not that the fair value of its reporting units are less than the carrying
amounts, and no impairment was recorded as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Plant Turnaround Costs

Certain major maintenance items require plant shutdown for a period of time to perform periodic
overhauls and refurbishment activities necessary to sustain long-term production. The Group
capitalizes periodic planned major maintenance activities (plant turnaround costs) and amortizes
such costs over periods leading up to the next planned turnaround (generally 14 months).

Included in prepaid expenses and other current assets is approximately $9,146 thousands and
$12,286 thousands of deferred plant turnaround costs as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately $25,743
thousands and $25,783 thousands, respectively, of plant turnaround cost were amortized within
depreciation and amortization in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Deferred Finance Costs

Deferred costs consist of loan financing fees, which are being amortized over the life of the
instrument.

As per ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Cost, the debt issuance cost
related to a recognized debt liability to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction
from the carrying amount of that debt liability. The debt issuance cost of $19,330 and $15,543
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively are reduced from the long term
debt less current portion.

Amortization of deferred cost is included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and totaled approximately $9,477 thousands and $5,205 thousands for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Group records its derivative instruments on the balance sheet at their respective fair values
and any changes in fair value are recognized immediately in earnings, unless the derivatives
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

qualify as hedges of future cash flows or net investments. For derivatives qualifying as hedges
of future cash flows, the effective portion of changes in fair value are recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income until the related hedge items impact earnings. Any ineffective
portion of a hedge is reported in earnings immediately. Fair values for derivative financial
instruments are based upon quoted market prices, where available, or pricing models.

As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding derivative instruments are six Euro-US$ forward
contract to sell Euro for a value of $215.08 million, two US$-CAD forward contract to buy US$
for a value of $9.96 million, two US$-CAD forward contract to sell US$ for a value of $9.96 million,
one US$-Euro forward contract to buy US$ for a value of $4.93 million, one US$-Euro forward
contract to sell US$ for a value of $4.95 million and one JPY-Euro forward contract to buy JPY
for a value of US$0.32 million.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding derivative instruments are one US$-CAD forward
contract to sell US$ for a value of $5.00 million, one US$-Euro forward contract to buy US$ for a
value of US$0.04 million, one US$-Euro forward contract to sell US$ for a value of $4.82 million
and one JPY-Euro forward contract to buy JPY for a value of US$0.30 million.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Group utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Group determines fair value based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal or
most advantageous market.

The Group classifies assets and liabilities into one of three fair value levels depending on the
observability of the input employed in the measurement as described below:

(i) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(i) Level 2 inputs are observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market-corroborated inputs.

(i) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability refiecting our assumptions
about pricing by market participants.

The Group classifies assets and liabilities in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The Group’s methodology for categorizing assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value pursuant to this hierarchy gives the highest priority
to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets and the lowest level to unobservable inputs.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and short-term debt
approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. Additionally, the
carrying amount of long-term debt approximates fair value at December 31, 2017, since a
substantial portion of long-term debt is at a rate consistent with market rates currently available
to the Group.

The following summarizes the assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. Assets consist of the Group’s retirement plans and
postretirement benefits and derivative instruments, which are valued using quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities or directly or indirectly through market-corroborated input,
and therefore, are classified as Level 1 or Level 2.
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Fair Value
as of
(in thousands of dollars) (Level 1) (Level 2) December 31, 2017
Assets
Pension Plan Assets:
Mutual funds $ 7692 $ - $ 7,692
Insurer managed fund - 35,898 35,898
Other assets
Derivative instruments - 532 532
Total $ 7692 $ 36430 $ 44 122
Liabilities
Derivative instruments - 417 417
Total $ - $ 417  $ 417
Fair Value
as of
(in thousands of dollars) (Level 1) (Level 2) December 31, 2016
Assets
Pension Plan Assets:
Mutual funds $ 6,732 $ - 8 6,732
Insurer managed fund - 30,306 30,306
Other assets
Derivative instruments - 38 38
Total $ 6,732 $ 30344 § 37,076
Liabilities
Derivative instruments - 258 258
Total $ - $ 258 $ 258

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences arise. The Group recognizes the effect of income tax positions only
if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income tax positions
are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in
recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.
The Group records interest related to income tax in interest expense and penalties in selling,
general, and administrative expenses.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries executed tax sharing agreements with RCUSA and
file its tax return on a consolidated basis and accounts for income tax expense using the separate
return method. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no net income tax
payments made by the Group to RCUSA.
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Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Certain group companies in Germany have entered into a profit and loss transfer agreement and
have created a fiscal unity for the purpose of paying corporate income taxes in Germany. The
German fiscal unity contains Rain Carbon GmbH (“RCGmbH”) as controlling entity and other
German group companies as controlled entities within the fiscal unity. The fiscal income as per
local GAAP of these controlled entities are fully allocated to RCGmbH and income tax expense
or benefit is recognized at that level.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expenses include the compensation costs, legal and
professional consultants, travel costs, and other general expenses.

Borrowing costs and capitalized interest

Interest expense, net is the combination of interest expense associated with the outstanding debt
of the Group and interest income.

Interest on external borrowings is capitalized on major projects with an expected construction
period of one year or longer. Capitalized interest is added to the cost of the underlying asset and
is amortized over the useful lives of the assets in the same manner as the underlying assets.

The following summarizes capitalized interest and interest expense, net charged to consolidated
statements of operations:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Interest expense, net $ 91,689 $ 88,900
Less: interest expense capitalized - 207
Net interest expense charged to consolidated statements of operations $ 91,689 § 88,693

Environmental liabilities

The Group accrues for remediation costs and penalties when the responsibility to remediate is
probable and the amount of related cost is reasonably estimated. Remediation liabilities are
discounted if the amount and timing of the cash disbursements are readily determinable.

Recoveries of environmental remediation costs from third parties that are probable of realization
are separately recorded as assets, and are not offset against the related environmental liability.

Commitments and Contingencies

Amounts associated with litigation and contingencies are accrued when management, after
taking into consideration the facts and circumstances of each matter including any settlement
offers, has determined that it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss
can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are
expensed as incurred.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which requires an entity to recognize revenue when the entity transfers control of promised goods
or services to customers. Revenue is recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. An entity is required
to disclose sufficient quantitative and qualitative information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows

13



Rain Carbon Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

arising from contracts with customers. The FASB also has issued several amendments to the
standard, which are intended to promote a more consistent interpretations and application of the
principals outlined in the standard. The new standard is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018 (as amended in August 2015 by ASU 2015-14, Deferral of
the Effective Date). The Group will implement the provisions of ASU 2014-09 as of January 1,
2019. The Group has not yet determined the impact of the new standard on its current policies
for revenue recognition.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes FASB
ASC Topic 840, Leases, and makes other conforming amendments to U.S. GAAP. ASU 2016-
02 requires, among other changes to the lease accounting guidance, lessees to recognize most
leases on-balance sheet via a right of use asset and lease liability, and additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosures. ASU 2016-02 is effective for the Group for annual periods in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, permits early adoption, and mandates a modified
retrospective transition method. The Group is required to adopt ASU 2016-02 on January 1,
2020, but is evaluating whether to early adopt the new standard. While the Group expects ASU
2016-02 to add right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to the consolidated balance sheets, it has
not evaluated other effects that the new standard will have on the consolidated financial
statements.

3. Property, Plant, and Equipment, net

Property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Land $ 46,760 $ 42,075
Buildings and improvements 90,614 84,720
Machinery and equipment 548,860 507,302
Construction in progress 58,811 24,343
745,045 658,440
Less: Accumulated depreciation (289,375) (239,016)
$ 455670 $ 419,424

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were $45,423
thousands and $41,001 thousands, respectively.

The estimated useful lives for depreciation purposes are:

Buildings and improvements 1-59 years
Machinery and equipment 1-50 years
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4, Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprising the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Estimated
(in thousands of dollars) Lives 2017 2016
Intangible assets with definite life
Customer contracts 9-15years $ 229,078 $ 214,140
Supply contracts 10 years - 70,000
Fawrable contracts 13 years 1,028 906
Technology rights 8-12 years 21,616 20,109
Trade names 15 years 42,033 40,614
IPR&D 15 years 11,949 -
Others 3-20 years 16,178 14,740
321,882 360,509
Intangible assets with indefinite life
Trade names 53,193 47,586
IPR&D - 10,540
53,193 58,126
Total intangible assets 375,075 418,635
Accumulated amortization
Customer contracts (129,606) (104,412)
Supply contracts - (62,619)
Faworable contracts (396) (279)
Technology (14,532) (11,515)
Trade names (23,108) (19,922)
IPR&D (797) -
Others (12,587) (12,736)
Total accumulated amortization (181,026) (211,483)
Intangible assets, net $ 194,049 $ 207,152

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $32,569 thousands

and $31,893 thousands, respectively.

The estimated intangible asset amortization expenses for each of the next five years and

thereafter are as follows:
(in thousands of dollars)

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
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5. Goodwill
(in thousands of dollars) Carbon
Products Chemicals Total
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 456,466 $ 147,746 $ 604,212
Currency translation (2,315) (4,961) (7,276)
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 454,151  § 142,785 $ 596,936
Acquisitions 537 - 537
Currency translation 16,063 17,758 33,821
Adjustments 9,955 - 9,955
Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 480,706 $ 160,543 $ 641,249
6. Investments
(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Investments
Equity investments $ 1,116  $ 862
Other investments 11,520 10,162
$ 12,636 $ 11,024

Other investments represent the long-term investment in Arsol Aromatics GmbH & Co. KG
(“Arsol’) located in Germany, which is accounted using the cost method. Arsol is engaged in the
business of refining benzene, toluene, and xylene. The cost method is applied as the group does
not exercise significant influence over Arsol.

Equity investments:

The Group holds two investments in unconsolidated companies, acquired as part of acquisition
of RUTGERS Group. InfraTec Duisburg GmbH (“InfraTec”) is a 30 percent owned and Tarlog
GmbH (“Tarlog”) is a 50 percent owned infrastructure and logistic services companies located in
Germany. During 2017, Group acquired the balance 50% of the ownership in Tarlog and merged
with ROUTGERS Germany GmbH (RGGmbH). No dividends were received from these entities for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The group recognized income of $137 thousands for the year ended December 31, 2017 (income
of $632 thousands for the year ended December 31, 2016) from the above companies in which
equity method of accounting is followed and such income is included in other (income) expense,
net in the consolidated statements of operations. The equity method of accounting is applied for
these investments as the group has the ability to exercise significant influence, but not control,
over the investees.
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Transactions with the equity method investment companies during the years ended December
31, 2017 and 2016 and the closing balances as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Transactions
Cost of goods sold

Tarlog GmbH $ 1,611 3 2,931

InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 7,730 6,697
Other operating income

Tarlog GmbH 69 85

InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 981 471

Closing balances
Trade receivables

Tarlog GmbH $ - $ 15
InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 1,919 787
Trade payables
Tarlog GmbH - 144
InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 43 1,032
7. Leases

The Group has entered into capital leases covering buildings, certain machinery, and equipment.

As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, the gross amount of assets under capital leases and related
accumulated amortization reflected in property, plant and equipment, net recorded were as

follows:
(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Buildings $ 304 % 295
Machinery and equipment 5,296 4,674
5,600 4,969
Less: Accumulated amortization (3,615) (2,616)
$ 1,985 § 2,353

Amortization of assets held under capital leases is included in depreciation expense.

The Group leases real property and certain equipment under operating leases that have initial
non-cancellable terms in excess of one year. Total rental expense under these leases totaled
$15,918 thousands and $13,785 thousands for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 20186,
respectively. Certain real property leases have renewal options.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial remaining
lease terms in excess of one year and future minimum capital lease payments as of December
31, 2017 are as follows:

Capital Operating
(in thousands of dollars) Leases Leases
2018 $ 2203 % 12,585
2019 2,201 11,819
2020 3,245 9,350
2021 - 7,043
2022 - 6,352
Thereafter - 6,881
Total minimum lease payments $ 7649 $ 54,030
Less: Amount representing interest (at rates ranging from 4.35%
to 6.16%) 695
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments $ 6,954
Less: Current instaliments of obligations under capital leases 1,880
Obligations under capital leases, excluding current instaliments $ 5,074
8. Composition of certain Balance Sheet items:

a. Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Accrued goods and senices received $ 19,420 $ 9,554
Accrued interest 28,658 24,493
Environmental liabilities 10,376 11,296
Capital leases - current portion 1,880 1,692
Advance from customers 281 70
Accrued Bonus 12,145 5,948
Other accrued liabilities 16,836 17,036
$ 89,596 $ 69,989

b. Other non-current liabilities:

Other non-current liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Environmental liabilities $ 10,061 $ 7,823
Capital leases — non-current portion 5,074 6,133
Advance from customers 2,033 2,361
Provision for straight lining of lease rental 849 753
Other non-current liabilities 2,655 5,224
$ 20,672 $ 22,294
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¢. Inventories:

Inventories at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Raw materials $ 141,393 § 70,346
Finished goods 108,916 68,753
Work in progress 15,618 11,383
Materials and supplies 39,042 23,330
304,969 173,812
Less: Reserve for lower of cost or net realizable value (6,274) (4,467)
$ 298695 § 169,345

9. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the tax rates expected
to be in effect in future years.

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Current:
Federal $ 252 $ 464
State (535) 146
Foreign 61,806 37,825
61,523 38,435
Deferred:
Federal $ (16,847) $ 47,730)
State 154 (821)
Foreign (15,810) (3,125)
(32,503) (51,676)
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 29,020 $ (13,241)
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The income tax expense differs from the amounts that would be determined through the
application of the federal statutory rate to pre-tax income (loss) as reflected below:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Federal income tax expense based on 35% of pre-tax income $ 51604 3 12,370
State income tax benefit, net of federal effect 556 (556)
Permanent differences (6,004) 5,639
Impact of tax rate changes (20,146) (756)
Effects of tax-exempt income and other deductions (1,081) (1,603)
Change in valuation allowance 633 (262)
Effects of additional taxes for prior years 185 861
Impact of differences between tax rates (5,265) 4,211)
Tax effects of tax base transfers (429) (19)
Taxes on un-distributed foreign earnings - 1,995
Non-deductible expenses 6,172 1,280
Rewersal of Deferred Tax Expense on unremitted foreign ) (27.870)
earnings under APB 23 ’
Other 2,795 (109)
Total income tax expense (benefit) 3 29,020 $ (13,241)

As of December 31, 2017, the Group has net operating loss carryforwards for Federal income
tax purposes of $69,056 thousands, which are available to offset future Federal taxable income,
if any, through 2036. The Group has net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax
purposes of $27,686 thousands, which are available to offset future state taxable income, if any,
through 2036. In addition, the Group has foreign net operating losses of $29,527 thousands, of
which an amount of $23,266 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any,
through 2023, $6,239 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any, through
2025 and the balance amount of $22 thousands is available for indefinite period. Considering the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment the Group has recognized valuation allowance of $7,399 thousands as of December
31, 2017 on the losses available for indefinite period.

As of December 31, 2016, the Group has net operating loss carryforwards for Federal income
tax purposes of $88,955 thousands, which are available to offset future Federal taxable income,
if any, through 2036. The Group has net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax
purposes of $31,646 thousands, which are available to offset future state taxable income, if any,
through 2036. In addition, the Group has foreign net operating losses of $63,125 thousands, of
which an amount of $21,075 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any,
through 2023, $17,977 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any, through
2025 and the balance amount of $24,073 thousands is available for indefinite period, considering
the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making
this assessment the Group has recognized valuation allowance of $12,460 thousands as of
December 31, 2016 on the losses available for indefinite period.

As of December 31, 2017, there are enactment of income taxes in United States and Belgium.
The effects of these enactments have been considered by the Group in December 2017
financials. There is an income tax benefit of $20,146 thousands for the year ended December
31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2017, the company has accumulated undistributed earnings generated by
their foreign subsidiaries of approximately $239,394 thousands which was subject to the one-
time transition tax on foreign earnings required by the 2017 Tax Act or has otherwise been
previously taxed. Based on currently available information, the company’s transition tax was
offset by utilization of foreign tax credits. The company intends to indefinitely reinvest these
earnings, as well as future earnings from our foreign subsidiaries, to fund their international
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operations. In addition, they expect future U.S. cash generation will be sufficient to meet future
U.S. cash needs.

The Group is subject to several income tax examinations by taxing authorities in various
jurisdictions within which it operates. As of December 31, 2017, management does not anticipate
the outcome of these examinations to result in a material change to its financial position.

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”) significantly revised U.S.
corporate income tax law by, among other things, reducing the corporate income tax rate from
35% to 21% and implementing a modified territorial tax system that includes a one-time
transition tax on deemed repatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Based on currently
available information, the company had a deferred tax liability that was offset by utilization of
foreign tax credit. Accordingly, the company estimated no transition tax is due on deemed
repatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries. The Company estimated that the value of the net
deferred tax liability will be reduced by $ 14,812 thousand due to change in federal income tax
rate to 21%.

The impact of the Tax Legislation may differ from the estimates above, due to, among other
things, changes in interpretations and assumptions the Company has made, guidance that may
be issued and actions the Company may take as a result of the Tax Legislation. The Company
will continue to analyze the Tax Legislation to determine the full effects of the new law, including
the new lower corporate tax rate, on the Corporation's financial statements and operations.

Any adjustments to provisional amounts as additional information is obtained will be reported in

the reporting period in which any such adjustments are determined, which will be no later than
December 31, 2018.

Significant components of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities were the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Deferred tax assets
Basis difference of property, plant, and equipment $ 1,274  $ 1,810
Pension 28,734 23,635
Other assets 4,862 3,145
Other liabilities 5,683 7,784
Net operating loss carryforward 28,669 49,410
Other 4,206 7,434
Total 73,428 93,218
Less: Valuation allowance (7,399) (12,460)
Total deferred tax assets 66,029 80,758
Deferred tax liabilities
Basis difference of property, plant, and equipment (42,387) (50,852)
Intangible assets (57,105) (74,953)
Financial assets (6,085) (2,640)
Inventory (893) (734)
Other assets (357) (3,461)
Pension (571) (361)
Other liabilities (1,584) (1,057)
Other (2,419) (8,036)
Total deferred tax liabilities (111,401) (142,094)
Net deferred tax liability $ (45,372) $ (61,336)
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10.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more-
likely-than-not that some portion or ali of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income
in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible,
management believes it is more-likely-than-not that the Group will realize the benefits of these

deductible differences, net of the existing valuation allowances at December 31, 2017.

Debt and Credit Facilities

Debt consists of the following borrowings as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) Reference 2017 2016
Senior secured notes, interest payable 0] $ - $ 377,83
at 8%, principal due December 2018
Senior secured notes, interest payable (ii) 245,780 360,780
at 8.25%, principal due January 2021
Senior secured notes, interest payable (if) 237,128 209,168
at 8.50%, principal due January 2021
Senior secured notes, interest payable (iii) 550,000 -
at 7.25%, principal due April 2025
Term loan from bank, interest payable at 4.88% (iv) - 4,754
principal due in 16 quarterly instalments from July 2014
Loan from JV partner, interest payable v) 1,722 7,930
at 8.00%, principal due December 2019
Loan from third party, interest payable i) - 3,320
at 4.00%, principal due October 2016
Term loan from Bank, interest payable at 2.5050% (vii) - 34,286
principal due in 84 monthly instalments from January 2016
Other credit facilities (viii) 49,911 25,027
Others 458 459
1,084,999 1,023,559
Less: Deferred Financng cost, net of amortization 19,330 15,543
Less: Short-term and current portion of long-term debt 50,369 35,954
$ 1,015300 $ 972,062

The scheduled principal payments on the short-term and long-term debt for each of the next five

years are as follows:
(in thousands of dollars)

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

2017

$ 50,369
1,722

482,908

550,000
$1,084,999
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

On November 23, 2010, one of the Group companies in United States issued $400,000
thousands of 8% senior secured notes due December 2018 (the "2018 Notes"). The 2018
Notes contain covenants and conditions that limit the Company's ability to, among other
things, pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness and make investments. The Company may
redeem some or all of the 2018 Notes at any time on or after December 2014 at specified
redemption prices. The 2018 Notes are secured by substantially all of the assets of the
Company and are guaranteed by the Company's domestic subsidiary on a joint and several
basis.

On March 31, 2017, the Group repurchased entire outstanding 2018 Notes by issuing a
tender notice to the bond holders at a premium of 0.375%. The company has received
acceptance for only $253,055 thousands for which premium has been paid and redeemed the
balance $124,780 thousands at face value.

On December 31, 2012, one of the Group companies in United States issued $400,000
thousands of 8.25% and €210,000 thousands of 8.50% senior secured notes due January
2021 (the “2021 Notes”). The 2021 Notes contain covenants and conditions that limit the
Company’s ability to, among other things, pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness and make
investments. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2021 Notes at any time on or after
January 2016 at specified redemption prices. The 2021 Notes are secured by substantially all
of the assets of the Company and are guaranteed by the Company’s domestic subsidiaries on
a joint and several basis. During the year 2015, the Company repurchased bonds worth
$38,220 thousands. During the year 2016, the Company repurchased bonds worth €11,550
thousands.

On April 4, 2017, the Group repurchased bonds worth $115,000 thousands of its 2021 Notes
at 103.875%.

On March 31, 2017, One of the Group companies in United States issued $550,000 thousands
of 7.25% senior secured notes due April 2025 (the “2025 Notes”). The net proceeds are used
to either tender or redeem all of the outstanding 2018 Notes and tendered for $115,000
thousands of 2021 Notes. However, the 2025 Notes issued have a provision that once the
2012 Notes are terminated, Parent company Rain Carbon Inc (RCI) will automatically become
the issuer of the 2025 Notes. The 2025 Notes contain covenants and conditions that limit the
Company’s ability to, among other things, pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness and make
investments. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2025 Notes at any time on or after
April 1, 2020 at specified redemption prices. The 2025 Notes are secured by substantially all of
the assets of the Company and are guaranteed by the Company’s domestic subsidiaries on a
joint and several basis.

On July 25, 2012, one of the RUTGERS group companies entered into a loan agreement with
a bank for $12,750 thousands at an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin of 400 bps. This
debt was secured by all assets of the said company and guarantee from certain RUTGERS
group companies until completion of the project. This loan was repayable in sixteen quarterly
instalments starting from July 2014. On January 25, 2017 the said company had repaid the
entire outstanding balance along with any accrued interests.

On July 18, 2012, one of the RUTGERS group companies entered into a loan agreement with
JV partner, to borrow RUB 428,750 thousands at fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. This
debt is due for bullet repayment in December 2018 and is subordinated to debt borrowed from
banks. Loan was fully repaid in December 2017 ahead of repayment schedule. RUB 100,000
thousands loan provided by JSC Karelsky Okatysh (daughter company of JV partner).

On October 18, 2013, one of the RUTGERS group companies entered into a €3,250
thousands credit agreement at fixed interest rate of 4% per annum. This unsecured loan is
extended till October 30, 2018 with an extraordinary termination right as soon as the
RUTGERS shareholder rating falls below B+. Interest rate would be renegotiated when three
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months EURIBOR exceeds 3% per annum. The outstanding borrowed amount under this
facility as of December 31, 2016 is €3,150 thousands. On March 3, 2017 the entire loan was
repaid along with accrued interest.

(vii) On November 28, 2012, one of the Group companies in United States entered into an ABL
credit agreement. The agreement provides for a $100,000 thousands ABL loan commitment
("ABL Loan"), which matures on November 28, 2017. The available limit under the facility is
dependent on the eligible inventories and trade receivable balances. The ABL commitment
may be utilized by drawing on revolving loans from the lender and by the issuance of letters of
credit. The letter of credit availability is limited to $40,000 thousands. This facility was
terminated on March 31, 2017

On March 31, 2017, Company entered into a new revolver facility of $60,000 thousands. The
Revolver Facility may be utilized by drawing on revolving loans from the lenders and by the
issuance of letters of credit. The letter of credit availability is limited to $20,000 thousands. At
December 31, 2017, letters of credit outstanding aggregated $15,168 thousands. No cash
drawings as per December 31, 2017.

(viii) Other Credit facilities:

a. During 2013, one of the Group companies in India, entered into agreements with two
separate banks for an aggregated facility amount of $63,105 thousands which can be
utilized for issuance of letter of credits and cash drawings. Outstanding letters of credit
issued under these facilities are subject to a fee of 0.75% per annum. The company is not
obliged to pay commitment fee on unused portion of the working capital line of credit
under this facility. Cash drawings under these facilities are subject to interest rate ranging
from 8.1% to 9.65% per annum.

These facilities are secured by pari-passu first charge over current assets comprising of all
inventories and book debts both present and future of the said company. As of December
31, 2017 cash drawings outstanding was $50,246 thousands with $12,860 thousands of
available limits.

b. During 2013, one of the group company incorporated in india, entered into an agreement
with bank to renew the working capital loan commitment of INR 840,000 thousands
(equivalent to $13,139 thousands on December 31, 2017). The facility can be utilized by
drawing on working capital loans from the lender up to INR 140,000 thousands and by
issuance of letters of credit up to maximum facility.

Outstanding letters of credit issued under these facilities are subject to a fee of 0.75% per
annum. The company is not obliged to pay commitment fee on unused portion of the
working capital line of credit under this facility. Cash drawings under the above said facility
are subjected to interest rate of 10.55% per annum. As of December 31, 2017 letters of
credit outstanding was $2,728 thousands, cash drawings outstanding was $8,917
thousands with $1,494 thousands of available limits.

11.  Capital Structure

The capital structure of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Shares
. Issued and
Par value Authorized Outstanding
Common stock - woting $ 0.00001 5,000 1
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12.

The outstanding common shares of the Company are wholly owned by RCUSA, a direct wholly
owned subsidiary of RIL.

Postretirement Benefits

The Group complies with the US GAAP around Compensation—Retirement Benefits, which
requires an employer that sponsors a single-employer defined benefit plan to (a) recognize the
overfunded or underfunded status of a benefit plan in its statement of financial position, (b)
recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and
prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components
of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to ASC 715 — “Compensation — Retirement Benefits”, (c)
measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-
end, and (d) disclose in the notes to financial statements additional information about certain
effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of
the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition assets or obligations.

Pension and other postretirement benefits are accounted for in accordance with the provisions
of ASC 715 and are funded to at least meet the minimum funding requirements as required by
law. Prior service costs are amortized to net periodic costs on the straight-line basis over the
average remaining service period of employees expected to receive pension benefits. The
estimated cost of postretirement benefits other than pensions is accrued during the employee’s
active service period.

The Group records annual amounts relating to its pension and postretirement plans based on
calculations that incorporate various actuarial and other assumptions, including discount rates,
mortality, assumed rates of return, compensation increases, turnover rates, and healthcare cost
trend rates. The Group reviews its assumptions on an annual basis and makes modifications to
the assumptions based on current rates and trends when it is appropriate to do so. The effect of
moadifications to those assumptions is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and
amortized to net periodic cost on the straight-line basis over the average remaining service period
of employees expected to receive pension benefits. The Group believes that the assumptions
utilized in recording its obligations under its plans are reasonable based on its experience and
market conditions.

The Group follows the disclosure provisions of ASC 715, which standardizes the disclosures for
pensions and other postretirement benefit plans.

Pension and Gratuity
The Group sponsors the following defined benefit plans:

a. The Group has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering hourly employees in
the United States. Benefits under the hourly employees’ plan are based on years of service
and age. The Group’s funding policy is to contribute amounts to meet minimum funding
requirements, plus additional amounts as the Group may determine to be appropriate.

b. In respect of subsidiary companies in Germany, Belgium, and Canada, the Group has
defined benefit retirement plans covering its employees. Pension provisions are recognized
for obligations due to benefit plans for old age, invalidity, and surviving dependents' benefits.
Benefits vary according to the legal, tax, and economic circumstances prevailing in each
relevant country. Benefits are usually based on the length of service and final salary of
employees.

c. In respect of subsidiary companies in India, the Group has defined benefit gratuity plan
covering all its employees. Gratuity provisions are recognized based on the years of service
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and age. The Group’s funding policy is to contribute amounts to meet minimum funding
requirements, plus additional amounts as the Group may determine to be appropriate.

The projected benefit obligation is the present value of benefits earned to date by pian
participants. Plan assets are measured at fair value. Changes in projected benefit obligations
and plan assets, and the funded status of the pension and gratuity plans were as follows for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 142,070 §$ 121,762
Senice cost 7,121 5,181
Interest cost 2,779 3,221
Plan participant contributions 1,204 1,016
Actuarial loss 3,579 17,406
Premiums paid (441) (283)
Transfer in/(out) 3,737 (90)
Benefits paid (3,085) (2,349)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 16,971 (3,794)
Benefit obligation at end of year 173,935 142,070
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 37,287 34,963
Actual return on plan assets 3,870 2,175
Employer contributions 1,250 852
Plan participant contributions 1,204 1,016
Benefits paid (2,144) (1,761)
Premiums paid (349) (200)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 2,737 242
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 43,855 37,287
Funded status at end of year $ (130,080) $ (104,783)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Accrued postretirement benefits $ (130,080) $ (104,783)

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 21,194 18,776
Net amount recognized $ (108,886) $ (86,007)

The net periodic cost for the defined benefit pension and gratuity plans was $8,802 thousands
and $7,156 thousands for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following represents projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair
value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Projected benefit obligation $ 173,935 §$ 142,070
Accumulated benefit obligation 152,412 134,490
Fair value of plan assets 43,855 37,287
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net periodic benefit
cost were as follows:

2017 2016
Benefit obligations
Discount rate 1.30% - 8.25% 1.31% - 7.65%
Net periodic benefit cost
Discount rate 1.31% -825%  2.10% - 7.65%
Expected return on assets 2.20% -7.50%  2.40% - 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase 0.00% -7.00%  0.00% - 7.50%

The basis of the long-term rate of return assumption reflects the defined benefit pension and
gratuity plans current asset mix of approximately 58% debt securities, 41% equity securities, and
1% of others with assumed average annual returns of approximately 4.00% to 8.40% for debt
securities and 0.20% to 12.00% for equity securities and 6.00% to 8.00% for others.

The defined benefit pension and gratuity plans investment portfolio is adjusted periodically to
maintain the current ratios of debt securities and equity securities. Additional consideration is
given to the plan’s historical returns as well as future long-range projections of investment returns
for each asset category.

The total net loss and prior service cost that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $1,561 thousands.

The Group’s pension and gratuity plans weighted-average asset allocations by asset category
were as follows:

2017 2016
Asset category
Equity securities 1% 42 %
Debt securities 58% 57 %
Others 1% 1%
100% 100 %

The Group expects to contribute approximately $2,346 thousands to the defined benefit pension
and gratuity plans during the year ending December 31, 2018.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

(in thousands of dollars) Expected
Benefit
Fiscal Years Ending Payments
2018 2,703
2019 3,846
2020 3,125
2021 3,829
2022 4,819
2023-2027 28,165
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Other postretirement benefits
The Group sponsors the following defined benefit postretirement plans:

a. The Group sponsors two defined benefit postretirement plans that cover certain employees
only. One plan provides postretirement medical and dental benefits; the other plan provides
life insurance benefits. Both plans are noncontributory and neither is funded.

b. Subsidiary companies in Canada provide non-funded postretirement medical and dental
benefits for employees in Canada.

Changes in projected benefit obligations and plan assets, and the funded status of the Group’s
postretirement plan were as follows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 4710 $ 4,216
Senice cost 206 183
Interest cost 188 178
Actuarial gain (384) 113
Benefits paid (184) (89)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 321 109
Benefit obligation at end of year 4,857 4,710

Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at end of year - -
Funded status at end of year $ (4,857) $ (4,710

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Accrued benefit liability $ (4857) $ 4,710)

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax (55) 185
Net amount recognized $ (4912) $ (4,525)

The net periodic benefit cost for the defined benefit postretirement plan was $393 thousands and
$361 thousands for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net periodic benefit
costs were as follows:

2017 2016
Discount rate — Benefit obligations 3.50% 4.10%
Discount rate — Net periodic benefit cost 3.90% 4.00%
The assumed health care costs trend rates were as follows:

2017 2016
Initial trend rate 6.56% 6.56%
Ultimate trend rate 4.50% 4.50%
Year ultimate trend rate is reached 2031 2031
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13.

The total net loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the

next fiscal year is nil.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

(in thousands of dollars) Expected
Benefit

Fiscal Years Ending Payments
2018 $ 172
2019 183
2020 188
2021 197
2022 219
2023-2027 1,258

Defined Contribution Plan
The Group has below contribution plans:

a. One of the subsidiary companies in the United States has established separate group
savings plans for all hourly and salaried employees in the United States. Employer
contributions are made at the discretion of the employer. Prior to January 1, 2013, employer
contribution was 4% plus a 50% match to employee contribution up to 2%, equaling a total
of 6%. In 2013, the Group changed the plan contribution to a dollar-for-dollar match
up to 6%. The Group has made a contribution of $1,037 thousands and $1,063 thousands
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, under this plan.

b. In respect of subsidiary companies in Belgium, Canada, India and the Netherlands, the
Group has Superannuation and contribution plans covering its employees. The Group makes
monthly contributions and has no further obligations under the plan beyond its contributions.
The Group has made a contribution of $1,074 thousands and $1,266 thousands for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, under this plan.

Segment Information

The Carbon Products and Chemicals best define the operating segments of the business that are
reported separately. The factors used to identify these reportable segments are based on the
nature of the products that are manufactured, traded, and distributed by each segment.

Carbon Products comprise Calcined Petroleum Coke (“CPC”), Coal Tar Pitch (“CTP”), Green
Petroleum Coke (“GPC"), Co-generated Energy, and other derivatives of Coal Tar distillation.

Chemicals include the downstream operations of Coal Tar distillation comprise Resins, Modifiers,
Super Plasticizers, and other specialty products.

These have been defined as the operating segments of the Group because they are the segments
(1) that engage in business activities from which revenue is earned and expenses are incurred;
(2) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance;
and (3) for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group evaluates performance and determines resource allocations based on a number of

factors, the primary measure being operating income. Operating income does not include equity
in earnings of affiliates, other expense, interest expense, (gain) loss on foreign currency
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transactions, or income taxes. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. All inter segment
transactions are accounted for at agreed upon rates based on transfer pricing agreements.

Results of segment operations are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) CY 2017 CY 2016
Revenue from external customers:
Carbon Products $ 1,318,310 $ 969,673
Chemicals 274,673 252,271
1,592,983 1,221,944
Intersegment revenue:
Carbon Products 69,188 76,039
Chemicals 38,381 47,908
107,569 123,947
Depreciation and amortization:
Carbon Products 87,855 81,617
Chemicals 15,880 17,084
103,735 98,701
Operating income:
Carbon Products 232,146 100,146
Chemicals 4,360 13,970
236,506 114,116
Capital expenditures:
Carbon Products 31,314 33,032
Chemicals 7,820 8,064

$ 39,134 § 41,096

Assets by segment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Assets:
Carbon Products $ 1,713,888 $ 1,401,832
Chemicals 351,561 341,553
Corporate 22,988 22,087

$ 2,088,437 $ 1,765,472

Investment in equity method investees:

Carbon Products $ 692 $ 534
Chemicals 424 328
$ 1,116 $ 862
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14.

Revenue by geographic area is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

United States

International
Total

International by region

North America excluding United States
South America

Europe including CIS

Middle East

Africa

Australia

Asia excluding Middle East

Revenues by geographic area in the above table are attributed by the

destination country of the sale.

Property, plant, and equipment by geographic area are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

United States
International
Total

International by region
North America excluding United States

Europe including CIS
Asia excluding Middle East

Related Party Transactions

CY 2017 CY 2016
$ 256,146 $ 247,354
1,336,837 974,590
$1,592,983  $1,221,944
$ 187,299 $ 130,066
35,468 33,340
664,555 504,843
107,111 86,115
60,288 57,312
5,940 6,023
276,176 156,891
$1,336,837 $ 974,590
2017 2016
$ 143,393 $ 151,071
312,277 268,353
$ 455670 $ 419,424
$ 39716 § 32,377
253,755 219,239
18,806 16,737
$ 312,277 $ 268,353

The Group has entered into transactions with the following related enterprises:

a. Rain Industries Limited (“RIL”) — ultimate holding company incorporated in India

Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.(‘RCUSA”) — holding company incorporated in The United

States of America

c. Rain Cements Limited (‘RCL") — wholly owned subsidiary of RIL incorporated in India

d. Rain Global Services, LLC (‘RGS”) — wholly owned subsidiary of RCUSA incorporated in

The United States of America
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Material related party transactions and balances are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Revenue $ 1,988 $ 2,234
Cost of goods sold 14,209 15,244
Dividend paid to RCUSA 2,700 31,022
Interest Expense, net 818 1,822
Other (income) expense, net 3,735 -

Selling, general & administration expenses 2,721 294

Due from affiliates

- RGS 6,224 7,854

- RCUSA 9,198 9,308
Advance to RIL - 957
Due to affiliates

RIL 237 194

Commitments and Contingencies

Legal proceedings

The Group has been named defendant in various lawsuits; however, in the opinion of
management, the amount of potential loss, if any, will not materially impact the Group’s financial
position or operating resuits.

Environmental matters

The Group is subject to federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations and potential
liabilities relating to the protection of the environment and human health and safety including,
among other things, the cleanup of contaminated sites, the treatment, storage, and disposal of
wastes, the discharge of effluent into waterways, the emission of substances into the air, and
various health and safety matters. The Group may also face governmental or third-party claims
or otherwise incurs costs, relating to cleanup of or for injuries resulting from, contamination at
sites associated with past and present operations. The Group accrues for environmental liabilities
when a determination can be made that a liability is probable and reasonably estimable.

Changes in environmental liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as
follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year $ 19,119 $ 27,045
Additional obligations incurred 4,701 4 658
Obligations settled in current period (5,439) (4,055)
Changes in estimates, including timing (404) (95)
Accretion expense 12 93
Unused amounts reversed during the period - (7,941)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 2,448 (586)
Balance at end of year $ 20437 $ 19,118

Of the above, environment liability of $10,376 thousands and $11,296 thousands were classified
as current liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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The equivalent un-discounted value of environment liability as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
is $20,008 thousands and $19,170 thousands, respectively, depending on the duration of the
environmental liability management uses interest rates between 0.00% to about 0.74% and
0.00% to about 1.38% at December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively, to measure the present
value of the environment liability.

Other matters

a. Estimated committed amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts,
net of capital advances is $8,223 thousands and $3,063 thousands as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively.

b. One of the Group Companies in the United States has an outstanding lawsuit (2013) against
a Contractor for delay, re-working, and cost overruns of a project. The Group Company's
case against the Contractor was stayed pending resolution of a related litigation and is now
proceeding in court. The parties have agreed to mediate the dispute, and they are
exchanging documents and information, after which they will select a mediator and proceed
with mediation. The Group Company’s claims against the Contractor range from $2,000-
3,000 thousands. Additionally, the Contractor is making claim for approximately $1,000
thousands against the Group Company on unpaid invoices for their work, which the Group
Company withheld. Legal costs affiliated with the case are on a contingent basis.

c. One of the Group Companies in the United States has an outstanding lawsuit (2013) against
a design and engineering Contractor's commercial general liability insurers for the
Contractor’s delay, re-working, and cost overruns. The Group Company’s case against the
Contractor was stayed pending resolution of a related litigation and is now proceeding. On
October 26, 2017, the Group Company obtained an arbitration award against the Contractor
in the amount of $4,400 thousands, plus costs and expenses. The Group Company is moving
to confirm the arbitration award in court. After the court confirms the arbitration award, the
Group Company will institute garnishment proceedings to recover the insurance policy
proceeds of the Contractor's commercial general liability insurers to satisfy the confirmed
arbitration award. The garnishment proceeding is not a guarantee of recovery of the full
amount (or any amount) as the insurers believe they are not obligated to pay under the law.
The law is not clear in this regard and it is possible that the Group Company recovers nothing
further for Contractor's commercial general liability insurers. Legal costs affiliated with the
case are on a contingent basis.

d. InApril 2016, a Group Company in the United States presented a revised claim to its insurers
related to Hurricane Isaac. The revised claim totals $5,000 thousands Contingent Business
Interruption losses, expenses to reduce loss, and professional fees. The insurers’ counsel
rejected the revised claim, and requested a settlement conference. A settlement conference
occurred in May 2017, resulting in a settlement offer from the insurers — and later, a reduced
settlement offer — that remains open. Group Company did not accept the offer. A trial is
currently set for April 2019.

e. In February 2016, an employee of a Contractor responsible for securing barges at a facility
of a Group Company in the United States allegedly suffered a leg injury while attempting to
secure a barge. The employee is claiming damages of approximately $2,000 thousands. The
employee has filed suit against the barge owner. The barge owner subsequently filed a third-
party demand against Group Company and its insurer seeking defense and indemnification
pursuant to the agreement for provision of the barge. Group Company has also made
demand on Contractor for defense and indemnification of the third-party demand filed by the
barge owner and for defense by Contractor’s insurer pursuant to the agreement between the
Group Company and Contractor. Contractor’s insurer has agreed to defend Group Company
in this action subject to a reservation of rights. Group Company intends to defend against the
defense and indemnity claims against it and pursue all claims against Contractor and its
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16.

17.

insurer for defense and indemnification. Mediation is currently scheduled for February 22,
2018.

f.  On May 26, 2016, an employee of a trucking Contractor of a Group Company in the United
States flipped a truck when he drove it off a ramp at the Group Company facility. Both Group
Company’s records and Contractor’s records reflect that the incident occurred due to “driver-
error.” Group Company filed a third-party demand for defense and indemnity against
Contractor based on the defense and indemnity language contained in its service contract
with Contractor. Case is ongoing.

g. A Group Company in the United States received enforcement actions from the state
environmental agency amounting to $140 thousands. Group Company has appealed. Group
Company will schedule a hearing to present its case.

h. In August 2016, Group Company in the United States settled with several bad faith insurers
as it related to expenses incurred by Group Company pursuant to a litigation which is now
inactive. A Group Company is currently continuing its claims against the last bad-faith insurer.
Collection efforts continue against bad-faith insurer and discovery has recently begun. Group
Company’s claims against bad faith insurer are approximately $2,000-$3,000 thousands.

Concentrations

The Group maintains cash at banks, which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The
group has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to
any significant risk from such accounts.

As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, two customers aggregated to approximately 24% and 15%,
respectively, of the Group’s trade and other receivables. Revenue from two customers
aggregated to approximately 17% and 10% of total revenue for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

Raw material purchases from three suppliers aggregated approximately 17% and 21% of total
raw materials purchases for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.\

Subsequent events

On December 11, 2017, one of the Group Companies in United States conditionally called for a
full redemption of its outstanding 2021 USD and EURO Notes contingent on the closing of a new
Term Loan B facility scheduled for January 16, 2018. The Company successfully closed on the
Term Loan B for €390,000 thousands and immediately drew funds for repayment of the called
Notes. The new funds, in addition to cash on hand, were utilized to redeem $246,800 thousands
and €198,500 thousands in notes at an early redemption price of 102.063% and 102.125%,
respectively. On January 16, 2018, the company settled the outstanding six Euro-US$ forward
contracts of $215,080 thousands in connection to the above mentioned notes repayment.
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KPMG LLP

Suite 2900

9089 Poydras Street
New Orleans, LA 70112

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Rain Commaodities (USA) Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPme LIP

New Orleans, Louisiana
March 2, 2018




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Trade and other receivables (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $750 in 2017 and $671 in 2016)
Due from affiliated companies
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Current tax receivables

Total current assets

Investments

Property, plant, and equipment, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Due to affiliated companies
Accrued liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Accrued postretirement benefit obligation
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (note 15)
Stockholder's equity

Preferred stock

Common stock

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Retained earnings

RCUSA stockholder's equity

Non-controlling interests
Total stockholder's equity
Total liabilities and equity

2017 2016

$ 115,544  $ 131,864
6,753 3,121

278,059 158,721

2,111 4,714

298,695 172,196
40,095 31,025

2,923 4,545

744,180 506,186
12,636 11,024
456,569 421,758
641,249 596,992
194,049 207,152
20,301 19,907

6,241 1,729

$ 2075225 $ 1,764,748
$ 179,051  $ 95,153
856 1,531

89,462 70,355

13,893 8,733

64,869 62,509
348,131 238,281
1,041,079 991,944
134,937 109,493
20,672 22,294

66,269 81,662

97,800 97,800

20,000 20,000

18,808 18,808
(149,397) (181,019)
436,480 336,757
423,691 292,346
40,446 28,728
464,137 321,074

$ 2075225 $ 1,764,748

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Revenue $ 1,592,983 $ 1,234,428
Cost of goods sold 1,178,974 967,132
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 75,853 59,716
Depreciation and amortization 103,937 99,098
Other operating income 971 991
Operating income 235,190 109,473
Interest expense, net 93,604 90,569
Gain on foreign currency transactions, net (12,220) (5,157)
Other expense (income), net 6,356 (8,264)
Income before income taxes 147,450 32,325
Income tax (benefit) expense, net 30,641 (10,670)
Net income 116,809 42,995
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 11,337 3,981
Net income attributable to RCUSA stockholder's $ 105,472 $ 39,014

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

3



Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (loss)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Net income $ 116,809 $ 42,995
Changes in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 36,693 (15,255)
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans
Net actuarial loss (net of tax) (2,549) (10,083)
Less: Amortization of prior senice cost
included in net periodic pension cost 76 81
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans (2,473) (10,002)
Other (1,845) -
Total comprehensive income 149,184 17,738
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 12,281 4,245
Comprehensive income attributable to RCUSA stockholder's $ 136,903 $ 13,493

Accumulated other Comprehensive loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss is disclosed as a separate component of Stockholder’s equity in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31,
2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

Foreign Defined
Currenc.:y Bene.flt Other Total
Translation Pension
(in thousands of dollars) Adjustments ltems

Ending balance December 31, 2015 $ (145662) § {9,036) § (443) $ (155,141)

Net current period change (15,876) (10,002) - (25,878)
Ending balance December 31, 2016 $ (161,538) $ (19,038) $ (443) $ (181,019)
Net current period change 35,940 (2,473) (1,845) 31,622

Ending balance December 31,2017 $ (125598) § (21,511) § (2,288) $ (149,397)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

4



Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Preferred Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Noncontrolling

(in thousands of dollars) Shares Stock capital Loss Earnings Interests Total
Balances at December 31,2015 $20,000 $97820 $ 18808 $ (155/141) §$ 310,151 $ 15639 §$ 307,277
Dividends declared - - - - (3,837) (3,837)
Transfer to Non Controlling Interest - - - - (8,928) 8,928 -
Repayment of Preference Equity - (20) - - - (20)
Netincome - - - - 39,014 3,981 42,995
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - (15,876) 357 180 (15,339)

Netchange in pension and other

postretirement benefits - - - (10,002) - - (10,002)

Balances at December 31,2016 $20,000 $97800 $ 18,808 $ (181,019) $ 336,757 $ 28,728 § 321,074
Dividends declared - - - - (6,000) - (6,000)
Transfer to Non Controlling Interest - - - 442 (563) (121)
Netincome - - - - 105,472 11,337 116,809
Other comprehensive income, net of tax :

Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - 35,940 (191) 944 36,693

Netchange in pension and other

postretirement benefits - - - (2,473) - - (2,473)

Other - - - (1,845) - - (1,845)

Balances at December 31, 2017 $20,000 $97,800 $ 18808 § (149,397) § 436480 $§ 40446 § 464,137

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 116,809 $ 42,995
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 103,937 99,098
Amortization of debt issuance cost 9,477 5,204
Provision for inventories - 1,042
Premium on redemption of bonds 4,970 -
Deferred income tax benefit (32,326) (49,790)
Gain on re-purchase of debt notes (362) (7,003)
Exchange gain on monetary items (18,052) (4,117)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 79 717)
Gain in Equity affliated companies (137) (616)
Other non cash items 14,739 675
Changes in other liabilities 614 (4,840)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade, current tax and other receivables (102,567) 27,689
Due from affiliated companies 2,424 11,021
Inventories (112,201) 59,097
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (36,552) (35,075)
Trade and other payables 46,186 13,434
Due to affiliated companies (1,015) 223
Current tax and accrued liabilities 15,608 (47,064)
Net cash provided by operating activities 11,631 111,256
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from Sale of property plant and equipment 2,451 589
Loan repaid by affiliates 2,108 -
Capital expenditures (39,134) (41,173)
Changes in restricted cash (3,701) (224)
Net cash used in investing activities (38,276) (40,808)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 556,633 31,338
Proceeds from short-term debt 116,396 84,278
Principal payments on long-term debt including revolver (562,182) (56,134)
Principal payments on short-term debt (93,518) (96,267)
Repayment of equity - (20)
Payments of financing cost (9,833) -
Dividends paid (including taxes) (6,000) (3,837)
Net cash used in financing activities 1,496 (40,642)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 8,829 (3,589)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (16,320) 26,217
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 131,864 105,647
End of year $ 115,544 $ 131,864
Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 84,361 $ 104,265
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 57,356 42,384

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

1. Organization and Background

Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. (the “Company” or “RCUSA”) has been incorporated to carry on
the businesses of producing calcined petroleum coke (CPC), trading metallic and/or nonmetaillic
substances, and investing in entities engaged in such businesses.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Industries Limited (“RIL" or “the Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in India and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company was incorporated in the
state of Delaware, United States of America on November 2, 2005.

The Company along with its subsidiaries (“the Group" or "Rain Group") operates in two business
segments Carbon and Chemicals. The Carbon business is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and sales of Carbon Products. Carbon Products comprise Calcined Petroleum
Coke (“CPC"), Coal Tar Pitch (“CTP”), Green Petroleum Coke (“GPC"), Co-generated Energy,
and other derivatives of Coal Tar distillation. The Chemicals segment includes the downstream
operations of Coal Tar distillation which comprise of Resins, Modifiers, Super Plasticizers, and
other specialty products.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of RCUSA and its
majority-owned subsidiaries that are required to be consolidated. All inter-company transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The equity method is used to account for investments in affiliates in which the Group has the
ability to exercise significant influence over the affiliates’ operating and financial policies. When
the Group does not have the ability to exercise significant influence, the investment is classified
as available-for-sale under fair value method, if fair value is readily determinable or under cost
method, if fair value is not readily determinable.

The Group has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through March 2, 2018, which is
the date the consolidated financial statements were made available for issuance. Any material
subsequent events that occurred during this time have been properly recognized or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements.

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary. to correspond
with the current year's classification/disclosure. These reclassifications have not changed the

results of operations of prior periods.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (US GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from such estimates and assumptions; include allowance for doubtful
accounts, estimated obsolescence or excess inventory, valuation of long lived assets and
goodwill, valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, environmental liabilities, post retirement
and pension obligations, commitments and contingencies and valuation of derivatives.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are reported in US dollars. The translation
from the respective functional currencies to the US dollar is performed using the exchange rates




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

prevailing at the balance sheet dates for assets and liabilities and average exchange rates
prevailing during the reporting periods for revenue, costs, and expenses.

Adjustments resulting from such ftranslation are accumulated and reported as other
comprehensive income (loss), a separate component of equity.

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year-end rates. The resulting gain/loss along with the realized gain/loss on account of
foreign currency transactions are accounted for in the consolidated statements of operations.

Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid, short-term investments with original maturities of less than three months when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include $11,628
and $4,004 thousands of certificates of deposit with an initial term of less than three months at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Group recognizes revenue, net of trade discounts, sales taxes, and allowances, based on
the shipping terms, when title and risk of ownership pass to the customer, collection of the
relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and the sales
price is fixed and determinable.

Shipping and other transportation costs charged to buyers are recorded in both sales and cost
of sales.

Trade Receivable

The Group grants credit to its customers based on periodic credit evaluations of customers’
financial condition and generally does not require collateral, but may require letters of credit for
certain international sales. The Group believes its credit risk related to trade receivable is
minimal. The Group estimates its bad debt exposure based upon a customer-by-customer
analysis of its trade receivable balances each period and records a bad debt provision for trade
receivable it believes it may not collect in full.

Trade receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts
collected on trade receivable are included in net cash provided by operating activities in the
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value and consist principally of raw
material, finished goods, work in progress, and materials and supplies. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. The Group
reviews its inventories balances and writes down its inventories for estimated obsolescence or
excess inventories equal to the difference between the cost of inventories and the estimated
market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. The cost of
Inventory includes production costs and depreciation expense.
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Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment is carried at cost and includes improvements, which significantly
increase capacities or extend useful lives of existing plant and equipment and consists primarily
of buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, furnishings and land, which is being
depreciated on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 1-59 years (except for land).
When fixed assets are sold or retired, cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts, and gains or losses are recorded in consolidated statements of operations.

Plant and equipment held under capital leases are stated at the present value of minimum lease
payments and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or
estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group evaluates impairment of its property, plant, and equipment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered.
If circumstances require an asset be tested for possible impairment, the Group first compares
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset to the carrying value of the asset.
If the carrying value of the long-lived asset is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis,
impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value. Fair value
is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models,
quoted market values, and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary. The
Group carried out the impairment analysis during 2017 and 2016 and no impairment has been
identified in 2017 and 2016.

Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets, other than goodwill and in process research and development
(“IPR&D"), are recorded at cost. Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives are amortized

on a systematic basis over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are:

Customer contracts 9-15 years
Supply contracts 10 years
Favorable contracts 13 years
Technology rights 8-12 years
Trade names 15 years
IPR&D 15 years
Others 3-20 years

Non-product specific trade names have an indefinite useful life.

The Group evaluates impairment of its intangible assets on an individual basis whenever
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recovered. Intangible assets deemed
to be impaired are written down to their fair value using discounted cash flows and, if available,
comparable market values. The Group carried out the impairment analysis during 2017 and 2016
and no impairment has been identified in 2017 and 2016.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents cost in excess of fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in business
combinations. Goodwill is reviewed for potential impairment at least annually or more frequently
if circumstances indicate that a potential impairment has occurred.

Our annual testing of goodwill is based on carrying value and our estimate of fair value as of
November 30.
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In testing goodwill for impairment an entity has the option to perform a qualitative assessment to
determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount prior to performing the two-step goodwill impairment test. If this is the case, the
two-step goodwill impairment test is required. If it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, the two-step goodwill impairment test is not
required.

If the two-step goodwill impairment test is required, first, the fair value of the reporting unit is
compared with its carrying amount (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit
and the entity must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). Under step two, an
impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit's
goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is
determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase
price allocation and the residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the
reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow
analysis. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, step two does not
need to be performed.

The group has performed an assessment of goodwill during 2017 and 2016 and determined that
it is not more likely than not that the fair value of its reporting units are less than the carrying
amounts, and no impairment was recorded as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Plant Turnaround Costs

Certain major maintenance items require plant shutdown for a period of time to perform periodic
overhauls and refurbishment activities necessary to sustain long-term production. The Group
capitalizes periodic planned major maintenance activities (plant turnaround costs) and amortizes
such costs over periods leading up to the next planned turnaround (generally 14 months).
included in prepaid expenses and other current assets is approximately $9,146 thousands and
$12,286 thousands of deferred plant turnaround costs as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately $25,743
thousands, and $25,783 thousands respectively, of plant turnaround cost were amortized within
depreciation and amortization in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Deferred Finance Costs

Deferred finance costs consist of loan financing fees, which are being amortized over the life of
the instrument.

As per ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Cost, the debt issuance cost
related to a recognized debt liability to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction
from the carrying amount of that debt liability. The debt issuance cost of $19,330 and $15,543
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively are reduced from the long term
debt less current portion.

Amortization of deferred finance cost is included in interest expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and totaled approximately $9,477 thousands and $5,205
thousands for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities
The Group records its derivative instruments on the balance sheet at their respective fair values

and any changes in fair value are recognized immediately in earnings, unless the derivatives
qualify as hedges of future cash flows or net investments. For derivatives qualifying as hedges
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of future cash flows, the effective portion of changes in fair value are recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income until the related hedge items impact earnings. Any ineffective
portion of a hedge is reported in earnings immediately. Fair values for derivative financial
instruments are based upon quoted market prices, where available, or pricing models.

As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding derivative instruments are six Euro-US$ forward
contract to sell Euro for a value of $215.08 million, two US$-CAD forward contract to buy US$
for a value of $9.96 million, two US$-CAD forward contract to sell US$ for a value of $9.96 million,
one US$-Euro forward contract to buy US$ for a value of $4.93 million, one US$-Euro forward
contract to sell US$ for a value of $4.95 million and one JPY-Euro forward contract to buy JPY
for a value of US$0.32 million.

As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding derivative instruments are one US$-CAD forward
contract to sell US$ for a value of $5.00 million, one US$-Euro forward contract to buy US$ for a
value of US$0.04 million, one US$-Euro forward contract to sell US$ for a value of $4.82 million
and one JPY-Euro forward contract to buy JPY for a value of US$0.30 million.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Group utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Group determines fair value based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal or
most advantageous market.

The Group classifies assets and liabilities into one of three fair value levels depending on the
observability of the input employed in the measurement as described below:

(i) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(i) Level 2 inputs are observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market-corroborated inputs.

(iii) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting our assumptions
about pricing by market participants.

The Group classifies assets and liabilities in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The Group’s methodology for categorizing assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value pursuant to this hierarchy gives the highest priority
to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets and the lowest level to unobservable inputs.

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and short-term debt
approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. Additionally, the
carrying amount of long-term debt approximates fair value at December 31, 2017, since a
substantial portion of long-term debt is at a rate consistent with market rates currently available
to the Group.

The following summarizes the assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. Assets consist of the Group's retirement plans and
postretirement benefits and derivative instruments, which are valued using quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities or directly or indirectly through market-corroborated input,
and therefore, are classified as Level 1 or Level 2.
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Fair Value
as of
(in thousands of dollars) (Level 1) (Level 2) December 31, 2017
Assets
Pension Plan Assets:
Mutual funds $ 7692 % - $ 7,692
Insurer managed fund - 35,898 35,898
Other assets
Derivative instruments - 532 532
Total $ 7,692 $ 36,430 3 44,122
Liabilities
Derivative instruments - 417 417
Total $ - $ 417 3 417
Fair Value
as of
(in thousands of dollars) (Level 1) (Level 2) December 31, 2016
Assets
Pension Plan Assets:
Mutual funds $ 6,732 $ - $ 6,732
Insurer managed fund - 30,306 30,306
Other assets
Derivative instruments - 38 38
Total $ 6,732 $ 30,344 $ 37,076
Liabilities
Derivative instruments - 258 258
Total $ - $ 258 $ 258
Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences arise. The Group recognizes the effect of income tax positions only
if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income tax positions
are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in
recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.
The Group records interest related to income tax in interest expense and penalties in selling,
general, and administrative expenses.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries executed tax sharing agreements and file its tax
return on a consolidated basis and accounts for income tax expense using the separate return
method.

Rain Global Services LLC (RGS) being a Limited Liability Corporation ("LLC") has opted to pay
income taxes at the share owners’ level. One of the subsidiaries in Egypt is subject to Investment
Guarantees and Incentives Law No. 8 of 1997 and is operating under public free zone and is not
subject to the provisions of the Egyptian Tax Laws and regulations for corporate tax.
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Certain group companies in Germany have entered into a profit and loss transfer agreement and
have created a fiscal unity for the purpose of paying corporate income taxes in Germany. The
German fiscal unity contains Rain Carbon GmbH (“RCGmbH”) as controlling entity and other
German group companies as controlled entities within the fiscal unity. The fiscal income as per
local GAAP of these controlled entities are fully allocated to RCGmbH and income tax expense
or benefit is recognized at that level.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expenses include the compensation costs, legal and
professional consultants, travel costs, and other general expenses.

Borrowing costs and capitalized interest

Interest expense, net is the combination of interest expense associated with the outstanding debt
of the Group and interest income.

Interest on external borrowings is capitalized on major projects with an expected construction
period of one year or longer. Capitalized interest is added to the cost of the underlying asset and
is amortized over the useful lives of the assets in the same manner as the underlying assets.

The following summarizes capitalized interest and interest expense, net charged to consolidated
statements of operations: ‘

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Interest expense, net $ 93,604 $ 90,776
Less: Interest expense capitalized - 207
Net interest expense charged to consolidated statements of operations $ 93,604 $ 90,569

Environmental liabilities

The Group accrues for remediation costs and penalties when the responsibility to remediate is
probable and the amount of related cost is reasonably estimated. Remediation liabilities are
discounted if the amount and timing of the cash disbursements are readily determinable.

Recoveries of environmental remediation costs from third parties that are probable of realization
are separately recorded as assets, and are not offset against the related environmental liability.

Commitments and Contingencies

Amounts associated with litigation and contingencies are accrued when management, after
taking into consideration the facts and circumstances of each matter including any settlement
offers, has determined that it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss
can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are
expensed as incurred.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Conlracts with Customers,
which requires an entity to recognize revenue when the entity transfers control of promised goods
or services to customers. Revenue is recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. An entity is required
to disclose sufficient quantitative and qualitative information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
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arising from contracts with customers. The FASB also has issued several amendments to the
standard, which are intended to promote a more consistent interpretations and application of the
principals outlined in the standard. The new standard is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018 (as amended in August 2015 by ASU 2015-14, Deferral of
the Effective Date). The Group will implement the provisions of ASU 2014-09 as of January 1,
2019. The Group has not yet determined the impact of the new standard on its current policies
for revenue recognition.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes FASB
ASC Topic 840, Leases, and makes other conforming amendments to U.S. GAAP. ASU 2016-
02 requires, among other changes to the lease accounting guidance, lessees to recognize most
leases on-balance sheet via a right of use asset and lease liability, and additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosures. ASU 2016-02 is effective for the Group for annual periods in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, permits early adoption, and mandates a modified
retrospective transition method. The Group is required to adopt ASU 2016-02 on January 1,
2020, but is evaluating whether to early adopt the new standard. While the Group expects ASU
2016-02 to add right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to the consolidated balance sheets, it has
not evaluated other effects that the new standard will have on the consolidated financial
statements.

3. Property, Plant, and Equipment, net

Property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Land $ 46,760 $ 42,075
Buildings and improvements 93,720 89,058
Machinery and equipment 548,860 509,484
Construction in progress 58,811 24,343
748,151 664,960
Less: Accumulated depreciation (291,582) (243,202)

$ 456,569 § 421,758

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were $45,625
thousands and $41,398 thousands, respectively.

The estimated useful lives for depreciation purposes are:

Buildings and improvements 1-59 years
Machinery and equipment 1-50 years
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4. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprising the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Estimated ,
(in thousands of dollars) Lives 2017 2016
Intangible assets with definite life
Customer contracts 9-15years $ 229,078 $ 214,140
Supply contracts 10 years - 70,000
Fawvorable contracts 13 years 1,028 906
Technology rights 8-12 years 21,616 20,109
Trade names 15 years 42,033 40,614
IPR&D 1S years 11,949 -
Others 3-20 years 16,178 14,740
321,882 360,509
Intangible assets with indefinite life
Trade names 53,193 47,586
IPR&D - 10,540
53,193 58,126
Total intangible assets 375,075 418,635
Accumulated amortization
Customer contracts (129,606) (104,412)
Supply contracts - (62,619)
Fawrable contracts ’ (396) 279)
Technology (14,532) (11,515)
Trade names (23,108) (19,922)
IPR&D (797) -
Others (12,587) (12,736)
Total accumulated amortization (181,026) (211,483)
Intangible assets, net $ 194,049 $ 207,152

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $32,569 thousands
and $31,893 thousands, respectively.

The estimated intangible asset amortization expenses for each of the next five years and

thereafter are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 $ 25,555
2019 25,198
2020 24,677
2021 22,129
2022 22,640
Thereafter 20,657
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5. Goodwili
(in thousands of dollars) Carbon
Products Chemicals Total
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 456,622 $ 147,746 $ 604,268
Currency translation (2,315) (4,961) (7,276)
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 454,207 $ 142,785 $ 596,992
Acquisitions 481 - 481
Currency translation 16,063 17,758 33,821
Adjustments 9,955 - 9,955
Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 480,706 $ 160,543 $ 641,249
6. Investments
(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Investments
Equity investments $ 1,116 $ 862
Other investments 11,520 10,162
$ 12,636 $ 11,024

Other investments represent the long-term investment in Arsol Aromatics GmbH & Co. KG
(“Arsol’) located in Germany, which is accounted using the cost method. Arsol is engaged in the
business of refining benzene, toluene, and xylene. The cost method is applied as the group does
not exercise significant influence over Arsol.

Equity investments:

The Group holds two investments in unconsolidated companies, acquired as part of acquisition
of RUTGERS Group. InfraTec Duisburg GmbH (“InfraTec”) is a 30 percent owned and Tarlog
GmbH (“Tarlog”) is a 50 percent owned infrastructure and logistic services companies located in
Germany. During 2017, Group acquired the balance 50% of the ownership in Tarlog and merged
with RUTGERS Germany GmbH (RGGmbH). No dividends were received from these entities for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The group recognized income of $137 thousands for the year ended December 31, 2017
(income of $632 thousands for the year ended December 31, 2016) from the above companies
in which equity method of accounting is followed and such income is included in other (income)
expense, net in the consolidated statements of operations. The equity method of accounting is
applied for these investments as the group has the ability to exercise significant influence, but
not control, over the investees.
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Transactions with the equity method investment companies during the years ended December
31, 2017 and 2016 and the closing balances as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Transactions
Cost of goods sold

Tarlog GmbH $ 1,611 $ 2,931

InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 7,730 6,697
Other operating income

Tarlog GmbH 69 85

InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 981 471

Closing balances
Trade receivables

Tarlog GmbH - 15
InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 1,919 787
Trade payables
Tarlog GmbH - 144
InfraTec Duisburg GmbH 43 1,032
7. Leases

The Group has entered into capital leases covering buildings, certain machinery, and equipment.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the gross amount of assets under capital leases and related
accumulated amortization reflected in property, plant and equipment, net recorded were as

follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Buildings $ 304 § 295

Machinery and equipment 5,296 4,674
5,600 4,969

Less: Accumulated amortization (3,615) (2,616)

$ 1985 § 2,353

Amortization of assets held under capital leases is included in depreciation expense.

The Group leases real property and certain equipment under operating leases that have initial
non-cancellable terms in excess of one year. Total rental expense under these leases totaled
$15,918 thousands and $13,785 thousands for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Certain real property leases have renewal options.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial remaining
lease terms in excess of one year and future minimum capital lease payments as of December

31, 2017 are as follows:

Capital Operating
(in thousands of dollars) Leases Leases
2018 $ 2,203 $ 12,585
2019 2,201 11,819
2020 3,245 9,350
2021 - 7,043
2022 - 6,352
Thereatter - 6,881
Total minimum lease payments $ 7649 % 54,030
Less: Amount representing interest (at rates ranging from 4.35%
to 6.16%) 695
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments $ 6,954
Less: Current installments of obligations under capital leases 1,880
Obligations under capital leases, excluding current installments $ 5,074
8. Composition of certain Balance Sheet items:
a. Accrued liahilities
Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of the following:
(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Accrued goods and senices received $ 19,420 % 9,554
Accrued interest 28,519 24,397
Environmental liabilities 10,376 11,296
Capital leases - current portion 1,880 1,692
Accrued Bonus 12,145 5,948
Other accrued liabilities 17,122 17,568
$ 89,462 § 70,355

b. Other non-current liabilities:

Other non-current liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Environmental liabilities $ 10,061 7,823
Capital leases — non-current portion 5,074 6,133
Advance from customers 2,033 2,361
Provision for straight lining of lease rental 849 753
Other non-current liabilities 2,655 5,224
$ 20,672 22,294
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c. lInventories:

Inventories at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Raw materials $ 141,393 $ 70,346
Finished goods 108,916 72,617
Work in progress 15,618 11,383
Materials and supplies 39,042 23,389
304,969 177,735
Less: Resene for lower of cost or net realizable value (6,274) (5,539)
$ 298,695 3 172,196

9. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the tax rates expected
to be in effect in future years.

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Current:
Federal $ 1,543 $ 789
State (383) 506
Foreign 61,806 37,825
62,966 39,120
Deferred:
Federal $ (16,607) $ (45,686)
State 92 (978)
Foreign (15,810) (3,126)
(32,325) (49,790)
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 30,641 $ (10,670)
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The income tax expense differs from the amounts that would be determined through the
application of the federal statutory rate to pre-tax income as reflected below:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Federal income tax expense based on 35% of pre-tax income $ 51,608 $ 11,314
State income tax (benefit) expense, net of federal effect 556 (556)
Permanent differences (6,004) 5,639
Impact of tax rate changes (20,146) (756)
Effects of tax-exempt income and other deductions (1,081) 10
Change in valuation allowance 633 (262)
Effects of additional taxes for prior years 185 861
Impact of differences between tax rates (5,265) (4,211)
Tax effects of tax base transfers (429) (19)
Taxes on un-distributed foreign earnings - 1,995
Non-deductible expenses 6,172 1,280
Rewersal of Deferred Tax Expense on unremitted foreign i (27.870)
earnings under APB 23 '
Other 4,412 1,905
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 30,641 $ (10,670)

As of December 31, 2017, the Group has net operating loss carryforwards for Federal income
tax purposes of $69,056 thousands, which are available to offset future Federal taxable income,
if any, through 2036. The Group has net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax
purposes of $27,686 thousands, which are available to offset future state taxable income, if any,
through 2036. In addition, the Group has foreign net operating losses of $29,527 thousands, of
which an amount of $23,266 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any,
through 2023, $6,239 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any, through
2025 and the balance amount of $22 thousands is available for indefinite period. Considering the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment the Group has recognized valuation allowance of $7,399 thousands as of December
31, 2017 on the losses available for indefinite period.

As of December 31, 2016, the Group has net operating loss carryforwards for Federal income
tax purposes of $88,955 thousands, which are available to offset future Federal taxable income,
if any, through 2036. The Group has net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax
purposes of $31,646 thousands, which are available to offset future state taxable income, if any,
through 2036. In addition, the Group has foreign net operating losses of $63,125 thousands, of
which an amount of $21,075 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any,
through 2023, $17,977 thousands are available to offset future taxable income, if any, through
2025 and the balance amount of $24,073 thousands is available for indefinite period, considering
the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making
this assessment the Group has recognized valuation allowance of $12,460 thousands as of
December 31, 2016 on the losses available for indefinite period.

As of December 31, 2017, there are enactment of income taxes in United States and Belgium.
The effects of these enactments have been considered by the Group in December 2017
financials. There is an income tax benefit of $20,146 thousands for the year ended December
31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2017, the company has accumulated undistributed earnings generated by
their foreign subsidiaries of approximately $239,394 thousands which was subject to the one-
time transition tax on foreign earnings required by the 2017 Tax Act or has otherwise been
previously taxed. Based on currently available information, the company’s transition tax was
offset by utilization of foreign tax credits. The company intends to indefinitely reinvest these
earnings, as well as future earnings from our foreign subsidiaries, to fund their international
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operations. In addition, they expect future U.S. cash generation will be sufficient to meet future
U.S. cash needs.

The Group is subject to several income tax examinations by taxing authorities in various
jurisdictions within which it operates. As of December 31, 2017, management does not anticipate
the outcome of these examinations to result in a material change to its financial position.

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”) significantly revised U.S.
corporate income tax law by, among other things, reducing the corporate income tax rate from
35% to 21% and implementing a modified territorial tax system that includes a one-time
transition tax on deemed repatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Based on currently
available information, the company had a deferred tax liability that was offset by utilization of
foreign tax credit. Accordingly, the company estimated no transition tax is due on deemed
repatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries. The Company estimated that the value of the net
deferred tax liability will be reduced by $14,812 thousand due to change in federal income tax
rate to 21%.

The impact of the Tax Legislation may differ from the estimates above, due to, among other
things, changes in interpretations and assumptions the Company has made, guidance that may
be issued and actions the Company may take as a result of the Tax Legislation. The Company
will continue to analyze the Tax Legislation to determine the full effects of the new law, including
the new lower corporate tax rate, on the Corporation's financial statements and operations.

Any adjustments to provisional amounts as additional information is obtained will be reported in
the reporting period in which any such adjustments are determined, which will be no later than
December 31, 2018.

Significant components of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities were the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Deferred tax assets
Basis difference of property, plant, and equipment $ 1,274 $ 1,810
Pension 28,734 23,635
Other assets 4,862 3,145
Other liabilities 5,683 7,784
Net operating loss carryforward 28,669 49,410
Other 4,206 7,434
Total 73,428 93,218
Less: Valuation allowance (7,399) (12,460)
Total deferred tax assets 66,029 80,758
Deferred tax liabilities
Basis difference of property, plant, and equipment (42,387) (50,852)
Intangible assets (57,105) (74,953)
Financial assets (6,085) (2,640)
Inventory (893) (734)
Other assets (357) (3,461)
Pension (571) (361)
Other liabilities (1,584) (1,057)
Other (3,015) (8,455)
Total deferred tax liabilities (111,997) (142,513)
Net deferred tax liability $ (45,968) $ (61,755)

21



Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more-
likely-than-not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxabie income
during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income
in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible,
management believes it is more-likely-than-not that the Group will realize the benefits of these
deductible differences, net of the existing valuation allowances at December 31, 2017.

10. Debt and Credit Facilities

Debt consists of the following borrowings as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) Reference 2017 2016

Senior secured notes, interest payable (i) $ - $ 372,835
at 8%, principal due December 2018

Senior secured notes, interest payable (i) 241,559 335,662
at 8.25%, principal due January 2021

Senior secured notes, interest payable (i) 237,128 209,168
at 8.50%, principal due January 2021

Senior secured notes, interest payable (i) 550,000 -
at 7.25%, principal due April 2025

Term loan from Bank, interest payable at 4.88% (iv) - 4,754
principal due in 16 quarterly instalments from July 2014

Loan from JV partner, interest payable v) 1,722 7,930
at 8.00%, principal due December 2019

Loan from third party, interest payable i) - 3,320
at 4.00%, principal due October 2018

Term loan from Bank, interest payable at 2.5050% (vii) - 34,286
principal due in 84 monthly instalments from January 2016

$40,000 loan from ICICI bank interest payable at floating (viii) - 10,000

rate (Term A- 5.86% and Term B- 6.86% as at December 31, 2016,
Term A- 5.32% and Term B- 6.32% as at December 31, 2015)
principal due in four annual instaliments from January 01, 2014.
Unsecured debt from RIL, interest payable at fioating rate - 15,000
(4.90% at December 31, 2016 and 4.44% at December 31, 2015)
principal due 2017
Unsecured debt from RIL, interest payable at floating rate 14,500 20,000
(3.8378% at December 31, 2017 and 3.10% at December 31, 2016)
principal due 2018
Unsecured debt from RIL, interest payable at floating rate 30,000 30,000
(5.58278% at December 31, 2016),
64% of principal due in 8 equal quarterly installments from
December 1, 2019, 12% of principal due on December 1, 2021
and 24% of principal due on March 1, 2022.

Other credit facilities (ix) 49,911 26,527
Others 458 514

1,125,278 1,069,996
Less: Deferred Financng cost, net of amortization 19,330 15,543
Less: Short-term and current portion of long-term debt 64,869 62,509

$ 1,041,079 $ 991,944
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The scheduled principal payments on the short-term and long-term debt for each of the next five
years are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017

2018 $ 64,869
2019 4,122
2020 9,600
2021 489,487
2022 7,200
Thereafter 550,000

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

$ 1,125,278

On November 23, 2010, one of the Group companies in United States issued $400,000
thousands of 8% senior secured notes due December 2018 (the "2018 Notes"). The 2018
Notes contain covenants and conditions that limit the Company's ability to, among other
things, pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness and make investments. The Company may
redeem some or all of the 2018 Notes at any time on or after December 2014 at specified
redemption prices. The 2018 Notes are secured by substantially all of the assets of the
Company and are guaranteed by the Company's domestic subsidiary on a joint and several
basis.

On March 31, 2017, the Group repurchased entire outstanding 2018 Notes by issuing a
tender notice to the bond holders at a premium of 0.375%. The company has received
acceptance for only $253,055 thousands for which premium has been paid and redeemed
the balance $124,780 thousands at face value.

On December 31, 2012, one of the Group companies in United States issued $400,000
thousands of 8.25% and €210,000 thousands of 8.50% senior secured notes due January
2021 (the “2021 Notes”). The 2021 Notes contain covenants and conditions that limit the
Company'’s ability to, among other things, pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness and make
investments. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2021 Notes at any time on or
after January 2016 at specified redemption prices. The 2021 Notes are secured by
substantially all of the assets of the Company and are guaranteed by the Company’s
domestic subsidiaries on a joint and several basis. During the year 2015, the Company
repurchased bonds worth $38,220 thousands. During the year 2016, the Company
repurchased bonds worth €11,550 thousands.

On April 4, 2017, the Group repurchased bonds worth $115,000 thousands of its 2021
Notes at 103.875%.

On March 31, 2017, one of the Group companies in United States issued $550,000
thousands of 7.25% senior secured notes due April 2025 (the “2025 Notes”). The net
proceeds are used to either tender or redeem all of the outstanding 2018 Notes and tendered
for $115,000 thousands of 2021 Notes. However, the 2025 Notes issued have a provision
that once the 2021 Notes are terminated, Parent company Rain Carbon Inc (RCI) will
automatically become the issuer of the 2025 Notes. The 2025 Notes contain covenants and
conditions that limit the company’s ability to, among other things, pay cash dividends, incur
indebtedness and make investments. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2025
Notes at any time on or after April 1, 2020 at specified redemption prices. The 2025 Notes
are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company and are guaranteed by the
Company’s domestic subsidiaries on a joint and several basis.

On July 25, 2012, one of the RUTGERS group companies entered into a loan agreement

with a bank for $12,750 thousands at an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin of 400 bps.
This debt was secured by all assets of the said company and guarantee from certain
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)

(vi)

(vii)

RUTGERS group companies until completion of the project. This loan was repayable in
sixteen quarterly instalments starting from July 2014. On January 25, 2017 the said company
had repaid the entire outstanding balance along with any accrued interests.

On July 18, 2012, one of the RUTGERS group companies entered into a loan agreement
with a JV partner, to borrow RUB 428,750 thousands at fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.
This debt is due for bullet repayment in December 2018 and is subordinated to debt
borrowed from banks. Loan was fully repaid in December 2017 ahead of repayment
schedule. RUB 100,000 thousands loan provided by JSC Karelsky Okatysh (daughter
company of JV partner).

On October 18, 2013, one of the RUTGERS group companies entered into a €3,250
thousands credit agreement at fixed interest rate of 4% per annum. This unsecured loan is
extended till October 30, 2018 with an extraordinary termination right as soon as the
RUTGERS shareholder rating falis below B+. Interest rate would be renegotiated when three
months EURIBOR exceeds 3% per annum. The outstanding borrowed amount under this
facility as of December 31, 2016 is €3,150 thousands. On March 3, 2017 the entire loan was
repaid along with accrued interest.

On November 28, 2012, one of the Group companies in United States entered into an ABL
credit agreement. The agreement provides for a $100,000 thousands ABL loan commitment
("ABL Loan"), which matures on November 28, 2017. The available limit under the facility is
dependent on the eligible inventories and trade receivable balances. The ABL commitment
may be utilized by drawing on revolving loans from the lender and by the issuance of letters
of credit. The letter of credit availability is limited to $40,000 thousands. This facility was
terminated on March 31, 2017.

On March 31, 2017, Company entered into a new revolver facility of $60,000 thousands.
The Revolver Facility may be utilized by drawing on revolving loans from the lenders and by
the issuance of letters of credit. The letter of credit availability is limited to $20,000
thousands. At December 31, 2017, letters of credit outstanding aggregated $15,168
thousands. No cash drawings as per December 31, 2017.

(viii) On March 21, 2013, the Company entered in to a credit agreement with a bank for $40,000

thousands consisting of two tranches. The term loan A of $20,000 thousands, is secured by
pari-passu first charge on all movable fixed assets of the Company, first charge on the Debt
Service Reserve Account (‘DSRA”) balance of the Company and guarantee from Rain
Cements Limited (“RCL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of RIL. The term loan B of $20,000
thousands, is secured by pari-passtu first charge on all movable fixed assets of the Company,
first charge on the DSRA balance of the Company, guarantee from one of the domestic
subsidiaries and pledge of certain percentage of membership interest in one of the domestic
subsidiaries. On March 24 2017, the company has repaid the last annual installment of both
term loan A and term loan B.

(ix) Other credit facilities:

a. During 2013, one of the Group companies incorporated in India, entered into
agreements with two separate banks for an aggregated facility amount of $63,105
thousands which can be utilized for issuance of letter of credits and cash drawings.
Outstanding letters of credit issued under these facilities are subject to a fee of 0.75%
per annum. The company is not obliged to pay commitment fee on unused portion of
the working capital line of credit under this facility. Cash drawings under these facilities
are subject to interest rate ranging from 8.10% to 9.65% per annum.

These facilities are secured by pari-passu first charge over current assets comprising
of all inventories and book debts both present and future of the said company. As of
December 31, 2017 cash drawings outstanding was $50,246 thousands with $12,860
thousands of available limits.

24




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

1.

12.

b. During 2013, one of the Group companies incorporated in India, entered into an
agreement with bank to renew the working capital loan commitment of INR 840,000
thousands (equivalent to $13,139 thousands on December 31, 2017). The facility can
be utilized by drawing on working capital loans from the lender up to INR 140,000
thousands and by the issuance of letters of credit up to maximum facility.

Outstanding letters of credit issued under these facilities are subject to a fee of 0.75%
per annum. The company is not obliged to pay commitment fee on unused portion of
the working capital line of credit under this facility. Cash drawings under the above said
facility are subject to interest rate of 10.55% per annum. As of December 31, 2017
letters of credit outstanding was $2,728 thousands, cash drawings outstanding was
$8,917 thousands with $1,494 thousands of available limits.

Capital Structure

The capital structure of the Company included the following as of December 31, 2017 and
2016:

2017 2016
Shares Shares
Issued and Issued and
Parvalue Authorized Outstanding Parvalue Authorized Outstanding

Common stock - Class A $ 0.01 1,250,000 20 % 0.01 1,250,000 20
Common stock - Class B $ 100.00 200,000 200,000 $ 100.00 200,000 200,000
Conwertible Redeemable Preferred Series - B $ 1,000.00 100,000 97,800  $1,000.00 100,000 97,800

The outstanding common stock of the Company is wholly owned by RIL.

Series B preferred stock is redeemable, at par, any time with the mutual agreement between
the Company and the stockholder(s). Series B preferred stock also provides stockholders with
an option to convert all or in portion of Series B preferred stock into Class A common stock at
par value.

Postretirement Benefits

The Group complies with the US GAAP around Compensation—Retirement Benefits, which
requires an employer that sponsors a single-employer defined benefit plan to (a) recognize the
overfunded or underfunded status of a benefit plan in its statement of financial position, (b)
recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and
prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components
of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to ASC 715— “Compensation — Retirement Benefits®, (c)
measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-
end, and (d) disclose in the notes to financial statements additional information about certain
effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of
the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition assets or obligations.

Pension and other postretirement benefits are accounted for in accordance with the provisions
of ASC 715 and are funded to at least meet the minimum funding requirements as required by
law. Prior service costs are amortized to net periodic costs on the straight-line basis over the
average remaining service period of employees expected to receive pension benefits. The
estimated cost of postretirement benefits other than pensions is accrued during the employee’s
active service period.

The Group records annual amounts relating to its pension and postretirement plans based on
calculations that incorporate various actuarial and other assumptions, including discount rates,
mortality, assumed rates of return, compensation increases, turnover rates, and heaithcare cost
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trend rates. The Group reviews its assumptions on an annual basis and makes modifications to
the assumptions based on current rates and trends when it is appropriate to do so. The effect of
modifications to those assumptions is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and
amortized to net periodic cost on the straight-line basis over the average remaining service period
of employees expected to receive pension benefits. The Group believes that the assumptions
utilized in recording its obligations under its plans are reasonable based on its experience and
market conditions.

The Group follows the disclosure provisions of ASC 715, which standardizes the disclosures for
pensions and other postretirement benefit plans.

Pension and Gratuity
The Group sponsors the following defined benefit plans:

a. The Group has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering hourly employees in
the United States. Benefits under the hourly employees’ plan are based on years of service
and age. The Group’s funding policy is to contribute amounts to meet minimum funding
requirements, plus additional amounts as the Group may determine to be appropriate.

b. In respect of subsidiary companies in Germany, Belgium, and Canada, the Group has
defined benefit retirement plans covering its employees. Pension provisions are recognized
for obligations due to benefit plans for old age, invalidity, and surviving dependents’ benefits.
Benefits vary according to the legal, tax, and economic circumstances prevailing in each
relevant country. Benefits are usually based on the length of service and final salary of
employees.

c. In respect of subsidiary companies in India, the Group has defined benefit gratuity plan
covering all its employees. Gratuity provisions are recognized based on the years of service
and age. The Group’s funding policy is to contribute amounts to meet minimum funding
requirements, plus additional amounts as the Group may determine to be appropriate.
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The projected benefit obligation is the present value of benefits earned to date by plan
participants. Plan assets are measured at fair value. Changes in projected benefit obligations
and plan assets, and the funded status of the pension and gratuity plans were as follows for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Change in projected benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 142,070 $ 121,762
Senice cost 7,121 5,181
Interest cost 2,779 3,221
Plan participant contributions 1,204 1,016
Actuarial loss 3,579 17,406
Premiums paid (441) (283)
Transfer in/(out) 3,737 (90)
Benefits paid (3,085) (2,349)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 16,971 (3,794)
Benefit obligation at end of year 173,935 142,070
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 37,287 34,963
Actual return on plan assets 3,870 2,175
Employer contributions 1,250 852
Plan participant contributions 1,204 1,016
Benefits paid (2,144) (1,761)
Premiums paid (349) (200)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 2,737 242
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 43,855 37,287
Funded status at end of year $ (130,080) $ (104,783)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Accrued postretirement benefits $ (130,080) $ (104,783)

Accumulated other comprehensiwve loss, net of tax 21,194 18,776
Net amount recognized $ (108,886) $ (86,007)

The net periodic cost for the defined benefit pension and gratuity plans was $8,802 thousands
and $7,156 thousands for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following represents projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair
value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Projected benefit obligation $ 173,935 $ 142,070
Accumulated benefit obligation 152,412 134,490
Fair value of plan assets 43,855 37,287
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net periodic benefit
cost were as follows:

2017 2016
Benefit obligations
Discount rate 1.30% - 8.25% 1.31% - 7.65%
Net periodic benefit cost
Discount rate 1.31% -8.25%  2.10% - 7.65%
Expected return on assets 2.20% - 7.50%  2.40% - 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase 0.00% -7.00%  0.00% - 7.50%

The basis of the long-term rate of return assumption reflects the defined benefit pension and
gratuity plans current asset mix of approximately 58% debt securities, 41% equity securities, and
1% of others with assumed average annual returns of approximately 4.00% to 8.40% for debt
securities and 0.20% to 12.00% for equity securities and 6.00% to 8.00% for others.

The defined benefit pension and gratuity plans investment portfolio is adjusted periodically to
maintain the current ratios of debt securities and equity securities. Additional consideration is
given to the plan’s historical returns as well as future long-range projections of investment returns
for each asset category.

The total net loss and prior service cost that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $1,561 thousands.

The Group’s pension and gratuity plans weighted-average asset allocations by asset category
were as follows:

2017 2016
Asset category
Equity securities 41% 42%
Debt securities 58% 57%
Others 1% 1%
100% 100%

The Group expects to contribute approximately $2,346 thousands to the defined benefit pension
and gratuity plans during the year ending December 31, 2018.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

(in thousands of dollars) Expected
Benefit
Fiscal Years Ending Payments
2018 $ 2,703
2019 3,846
2020 3,125
2021 3,829
2022 4,819
2023-2027 28,165
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Other postretirement benefits

The Group sponsors the following defined benefit postretirement plans:

a. The Group sponsors two defined benefit postretirement plans that cover certain employees
only. One plan provides postretirement medical and dental benefits; the other plan provides
life insurance benefits. Both plans are noncontributory and neither is funded.

b. Subsidiary companies in Canada provide non-funded postretirement medical and dental
benefits for employees in Canada.

Changes in projected benefit obligations and plan assets, and the funded status of the Group’s
postretirement plan were as follows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 4,710 $ 4,216
Service cost 206 183
Interest cost 188 178
Actuarial gain (384) 113
Benefits paid (184) (89)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 321 109
Benefit obligation at end of year 4,857 4,710

Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at end of year - -

Funded status at end of year $ (4,857) $ (4,710)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Accrued benefit liability $ 4,857) $ 4,710)

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax (55) 185
Net amount recognized $ (4912) § (4,525)

The net periodic benefit cost for the defined benefit postretirement plan was $393 thousands and
$361 thousands for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net periodic benefit
costs were as follows:

2017 2016
Discount rate — Benefit obligations 3.50% 4.10%
Discount rate — Net periodic benefit cost 3.90% 4.00%
The assumed health care costs trend rates were as follows:
2017 2016

Initial trend rate 6.56% 6.56%
Ultimate trend rate 4.50% 4.50%
Year ultimate trend rate is reached 2031 2031
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The total net loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the

next fiscal year is nil.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

(in thousands of dollars) Expected
Benefit
Fiscal Years Ending Payments
2018 $ 172
2019 183
2020 188
2021 197
2022 219
2023-2027 1,258

Defined Contribution Plan
The Group has below contribution plans:

a. One of the subsidiary companies in the United States has established separate group
savings plans for all hourly and salaried employees in the United States. Employer
contributions are made at the discretion of the employer. Prior to January 1, 2013, employer
contribution was 4% plus a 50% match to employee contribution up to 2%, equaling a total
of 6%. In 2013, the Group changed the plan contribution to a dollar-for-dollar match
up to 6%. The Group has made a contribution of $1,037 thousands and $1,063 thousands
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, under this plan.

b. In respect of subsidiary companies in Belgium, Canada, India, and the Netherlands, the
Group has Superannuation and contribution plans covering its employees. The Group makes
monthly contributions and has no further obligations under the plan beyond its contributions.
The Group has made a contribution of $1,074 thousands and $1,330 thousands for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, under this plan.

Segment Information

The Carbon Products and Chemicals best define the operating segments of the business that are
reported separately. The factors used to identify these reportable segments are based on the
nature of the products that are manufactured, traded, and distributed by each segment.

Carbon Products comprise Calcined Petroleum Coke (“CPC"), Coal Tar Pitch (“CTP"), Green
Petroleum Coke (“GPC”), Co-generated Energy, and other derivatives of Coal Tar distillation.

Chemicals include the downstream operations of Coal Tar distillation comprise Resins, Modifiers,
Super Plasticizers, and other specialty products.

These have been defined as the operating segments of the Group because they are the segments
(1) that engage in business activities from which revenue is earned and expenses are incurred;
(2) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance;
and (3) for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group evaluates performance and determines resource allocations based on a number of

factors, the primary measure being operating income. Operating income does not include equity
in earnings of affiliates, other expense, interest expense, (gain) loss on foreign currency
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transactions, or income taxes. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. All inter segment
transactions are accounted for at agreed upon rates based on transfer pricing agreements.

Results of segment operations are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Revenue from external customers:
Carbon Products $ 1,318,310 $ 982,157
Chemicals 274,673 252,271
1,592,983 1,234,428
Intersegment revenue:
Carbon Products 69,188 76,039
Chemicals 38,381 47,908
107,569 123,947
Depreciation and amortization:
Carbon Products 88,057 82,014
Chemicals 15,880 17,084
103,937 99,098
Operating income:
Carbon Products 230,830 95,503
Chemicals 4,360 13,970
235,190 109,473
Capital expenditures:
Carbon Products 31,314 33,109
Chemicals 7,820 8,064

$ 39,134 $ 41,173

Assets by segment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
Assets:
Carbon Products $ 1,700,676 $ 1,401,108
Chemicals 351,561 341,553
Corporate 22,988 22,087

$ 2,075,225 $ 1,764,748

Investment in equity method investees:

Carbon Products $ 692 $ 534
Chemicals 424 328
$ 1,116 $ 862
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Revenue by geographic area are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
United States $ 256,145  $ 247,354
International 1,336,837 987,074
Total $ 1592982 $ 1,234,428
International by region
North America excluding United States $ 187,299 % 130,446
South America 35,468 33,340
Europe including CIS 664,555 505,296
Middle East 107,111 93,265
Africa 60,288 61,830
Australia 5,940 6,023
Asia excluding Middle East 276,176 156,874
$ 1,336,837 $ 987,074

Rewvenues by geographic area in the abowe table are attributed by the destination country of the sale.

Property, plant, and equipment by geographic area are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016
United States $ 144,292  $ 152,173
International 312,277 269,585
Total $ 456,569 $ 421,758
International by region

North America excluding United States $ 39,716 $ 32,377
Europe including CIS 253,755 219,239
Africa - 1,232
Asia excluding Middle East 18,806 16,737

$ 312,277  $ 269,585

14. Related Party Transactions
The Group hés entered into transactions with the following related enterprises:

a. Rain Industries Limited (“RIL") — ultimate holding company incorporated in India
b. Rain Cements Limited (“RCL") — wholly owned subsidiary of RIL incorporated in India

Rain Entertainments Private Limited (“REPL”") - affiliate incorporated in India

o

Rain Enterprises Private Limited (“REnPL") - affiliate incorporated in India

o

32




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. And Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

15.

Material related party transactions and balances are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Rewvenue $ 1,088 $ 2,234
Cost of goods sold 5,618 5,144
Interest Expense, net 2,515 2,730
Dividend paid to RIL 6,000 2,232
Selling, general & administration expenses 2,618 294

Due from affiliated companies

-REnPL - 3,931
-REPL 142 -
Advance to RIL - 957
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities to RIL - 1,062

Due to affiliated companies

RIL 797 -
Long-term debt from RIL 30,000 65,000
Short-term debt from RIL 14,500 -

Commitments and Contingencies
Legal proceedings

The Group has been named defendant in various lawsuits; however, in the opinion of
management, the amount of potential loss, if any, will not materially impact the Group’s financial
position or operating results.

Environmental matters

The Group is subject to federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations and potential
liabilities relating to the protection of the environment and human health and safety including,
among other things, the cleanup of contaminated sites, the treatment, storage, and disposal of
wastes, the discharge of effluent into waterways, the emission of substances into the air, and
various health and safety matters. The Group may also face governmental or third-party
claims or otherwise incurs costs, relating to cleanup of or for injuries resulting from, contamination
at sites associated with past and present operations. The Group accrues for environmental
liabilities when a determination can be made that a liability is probable and reasonably estimable.

Changes in environmental liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as
follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year $ 19,119 $ 27,045
Additional obligations incurred 4,701 4,658
Obligations settled in current period (5,439) (4,055)
Changes in estimates, including timing (404) (95)
Accretion expense 12 93
Unused amounts reversed during the period - (7,941)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 2,448 (586)
Balance at end of year $ 20,437 $ 19,119
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Of the above, environment liability of $10,376 thousands and $11,296 thousands were classified
as current liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The equivalent un-discounted value of environment liability as of December 2017 and 2016 is
$20,008 thousands and $19,170 thousands, respectively, depending on the duration of the
environmental liability management uses interest rates between 0.00% to about 0.74% and
0.00% to about 1.38% at December 2017 and 2016, respectively, to measure the present value
of the environment liability.

Other matters

a. Estimated committed amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts,
net of capital advances is $8,223 thousands and $3,063 thousands as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively.

b. One of the Group Companies in the United States has an outstanding lawsuit (2013) against
a Contractor for delay, re-working, and cost overruns of a project. The Group Company’s
case against the Contractor was stayed pending resolution of a related litigation and is now
proceeding in court. The parties have agreed to mediate the dispute, and they are
exchanging documents and information, after which they will select a mediator and proceed
with mediation. The Group Company’s claims against the Contractor range from $2,000-
$3,000 thousands. Additionally, the Contractor is making claim for approximately $1,000
thousands against the Group Company on unpaid invoices for their work, which the Group
Company withheld. Legal costs affiliated with the case are on a contingent basis.

c. One of the Group Companies in the United States has an outstanding lawsuit (2013) against
a design and engineering Contractor's commercial general liability insurers for the
Contractor’s delay, re-working, and cost overruns. The Group Company’s case against the
Contractor was stayed pending resolution of a related litigation and is now proceeding. On
October 26, 2017, the Group Company obtained an arbitration award against the Contractor
in the amount of $4,400 thousands, plus costs and expenses. The Group Company is moving
to confirm the arbitration award in court. After the court confirms the arbitration award, the
Group Company will institute garnishment proceedings to recover the insurance policy
proceeds of the Contractor's commercial general liability insurers to satisfy the confirmed
arbitration award. The garnishment proceeding is not a guarantee of recovery of the full
amount (or any amount) as the insurers believe they are not obligated to pay under the law.
The law is not clear in this regard and it is possible that the Group Company recovers nothing
further for Contractor's commercial general liability insurers. Legal costs affiliated with the
case are on a contingent basis.

d. InApril 2016, a Group Company in the United States presented a revised claim to its insurers
related to Hurricane Isaac. The revised claim totals $5,000 thousands Contingent Business
Interruption losses, expenses to reduce loss, and professional fees. The insurers’ counsel
rejected the revised claim, and requested a settlement conference. A settlement conference
occurred in May 2017, resulting in a settlement offer from the insurers — and later, a reduced
settlement offer — that remains open. Group Company did not accept the offer. A trial is
currently set for April 2019.

e. In February 2016, an employee of a Contractor responsible for securing barges at a facility
of a Group Company in the United States allegedly suffered a leg injury while attempting to
secure a barge. The employee is claiming damages of approximately $2,000 thousands. The
employee has filed suit against the barge owner. The barge owner subsequently filed a third-
party demand against Group Company and its insurer seeking defense and indemnification
pursuant to the agreement for provision of the barge. Group Company has also made
demand on Contractor for defense and indemnification of the third-party demand filed by the
barge owner and for defense by Contractor’s insurer pursuant to the agreement between the
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Group Company and Contractor. Contractor’s insurer has agreed to defend Group Company
in this action subject to a reservation of rights. Group Company intends to defend against the
defense and indemnity claims against it and pursue all claims against Contractor and its
insurer for defense and indemnification. Mediation is currently scheduled for February 22,
2018.

f.  On May 26, 2016, an employee of a trucking Contractor of a Group Company in the United
States flipped a truck when he drove it off a ramp at the Group Company facility. Both Group
Company'’s records and Contractor’s records reflect that the incident occurred due to “driver-
error.” Group Company filed a third-party demand for defense and indemnity against
Contractor based on the defense and indemnity language contained in its service contract
with Contractor. Case is ongoing.

g. A Group Company in the United States received enforcement actions from the state
environmental agency amounting to $140 thousands. Group Company has appealed. Group
Company will schedule a hearing to present its case.

h. In August 2016, Group Company in the United States settled with several bad faith insurers
as it related to expenses incurred by Group Company pursuant to a litigation which is now
inactive. Group Company is currently continuing its claims against the last bad-faith insurer.
Collection efforts continue against bad-faith insurer and discovery has recently begun. Group
Company’s claims against bad faith insurer are approximately $2,000-$3,000 thousands.

Concentrations

The Group maintains cash at banks, which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The
group has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to
any significant risk from such accounts.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, two customers aggregated to approximately 24% and 15%,
respectively, of the Group’s trade and other receivables. Revenue from two customers
aggregated to approximately 17% and 10% of total revenue for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

Raw material purchases from three suppliers aggregated approximately 17% and 21% of total
raw materials purchases for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Subsequent events

On December 11, 2017, one of the Group Companies in United States conditionally called for a
full redemption of its outstanding 2021 USD and EURO Notes contingent on the closing of a new
Term Loan B facility scheduled for January 16, 2018. The Company successfully closed on the
Term Loan B for €390,000 thousands and immediately drew funds for repayment of the called
Notes. The new funds, in addition to cash on hand, were utilized to redeem $246,800 thousands
and €198,500 thousands in notes at an early redemption price of 102.063% and 102.125%,
respectively. On January 16, 2018, the company settled the outstanding six Euro-US$ forward
contracts of $215,080 thousands in connection to the above mentioned notes repayment.
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Rain Cements Limited
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2617

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Particulars Note As at As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31,2016 January 1, 2016
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 3,886.42 4,100.65 3,747.95
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 45.20 35.97 423.19
(¢) Other intangible assets 1.74 1.68 1.37
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 259.61 250.59 93.77
(ii) Loans 6 238.45 229.97 258.24
(ii1) Other financial assets 7 - 4.60 158.63
(e) Other tax assets (net) 8 305.10 150.48 150.50
(f) Other non-current assets 9 33.50 54.37 143.75
4,770.02 4,828.31 4,977.40
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 1,015.66 1,067.55 838.63
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 11 10.00 - 136.69
(ii) Trade receivables 12 112.63 44.30 2.06
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 144.00 137.19 321.21
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and 13 1,379.11 1,010.32 772.99
cash equivalents
(v) Loans 14 0.40 10.07 11.43
(vi) Other financial assets 15 39.14 23.82 23.92
(c) Other current assets 16 291.97 170.40 243.45
2,992.91 2,463.65 2,350.38
TOTAL 7,762.93 7,291.96 7,327.78
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 298.05 298.05 298.05
(b) Other equity 18 3,562.43 3,196.01 3,047.33
3,860.48 3,494.06 3,345.38
2. Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 662.46 729.06 759.46
(ii) Other financial liabilities 20 283.40 264.40 264.40
(b) Provisions 21 177.68 171.74 149.18
(c) Deferred tax liability (net) 27 660.31 689.29 616.71
(d) Other tax liabilities (net) 22 484.92 380.98 430.03
2268.77 2235.47 2219.78
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 23 741.54 755.18 958.81
(ii) Other financial liabilities 24 503.79 331.16 374.55
(b) Provisions 25 7.90 3.11 8.44
(c) Other current liabilities 26 380.45 472.98 420.82
1,633.68 1,562.43 1,762.62
TOTAL 7,762.93 7,291.96 7,327.78
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Jor BS R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Sujith Kumar Reddy Nellore
Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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Date: February 26, 2018

Director
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Company Secretary
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Rain Cements Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended December 31, 2017
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Note December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
1 Income
Revenue from operations 28 9,707.17 10,612.24
Other income 29 123.01 109.86
Total income 9,830.18 10,722.10
2 Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 1,137.18 1,179.18
Purchases of stock-in-trade 1.65 3.27
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 31 (67.58) (189.23)
Excise duty 820.81 1,566.82
Employee benefits expense 32 445.94 451.01
Finance costs 33 2.49 2.34
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3&4 461.66 425.02
Other expenses 34 6,519.62 6,521.89
Total expenses 9,321.77 9,960.30
3 Profit before tax (1-2) 508.41 761.80
4 Tax expense / (benefit) 35
1. Current tax 165.80 190.00
2. Deferred tax (32.28) 76.68
133.52 266.68
5 Profit for the year (3-4) 374.89 495.12
6 Other Comprehensive Income/(loss)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 9.54 (11.85)
(b) Income tax relating to Remeasurement as defined benefit plans (3.30) 4.10
6.24 (7.75)
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 6.24 (7.75)
7 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (5+6) 381.13 487.37
8 Earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10/- each)
Basic and Diluted 38 12.58 16.61
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 116231 W/ W-100024
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Partner
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Managing Director Director
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Date: February 26, 2018
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Rain Cements Limited
Statement of cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2017

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest and other borrowing costs
Interest income
Dividend income from current investments
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade receivables
Loans and other financial assets
Other assets
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid, net
Net cash from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Net of capital advances and
capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net proceeds from current investments
Investment in subsidiary
Placement of bank deposits
Redemption / maturity of bank deposits
Interest received
Dividends received on current investments
Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Interest and other borrowing costs paid
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend)
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 13)

Notes:

For the year ended
December 31,2017

For the year ended
December 31, 2016

461.66
16.74
2.49
(95.92)
(1.89)
(15.36)
2.46

51.89
(70.79)
1.19
(120.88)
1.72
(92.53)
169.52
2027

(270.28)

8.47
(10.00)
(9.02)
(1,379.09)
1,014.36
81.14
1.89

(562.55)

(35.94)
(2.49)
(14.71)

508.41
425.02
9.13
2.34
(97.19)
©.17)
(0.61)
370.18 0.82
878.59
(228.92)
(43.06)
29.63
72.97
(203.02)
52.16
(21.89)
(39.61) 5.38
838.98
(216.48)
622.50
(333.66)
4.08
136.69
(0.05)
(1,112.15)
872.62
96.75
(562.55) 9.17
(48.64)
(2.34)
(53.14) (322.85)
(53.14)
6.81
137.19
144.00

761.80

330.34

1,092.14

(336.75)
755.39

(239.03)

516.36

(326.55)

(326.55)

(373.83)

(373.83)

(184.02)
32121
137.19

1) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 'Statement of Cash

Flows'.

2) Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance

Add: Other bank balances

Cash and bank balances - closing balance

144.00

1,379.11
1,523.11

3) Comparative figures of the previous year, where necessary, have been regrouped to conform to those of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants
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Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information

Rain Cements Limited (‘the Company’) was originally incorporated on 4 May, 1999 and is domiciled
in India. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of cement. Company's
production facilities are located at Nalgonda district in the State of Telangana, Kurnool district in the
State of Andhra Pradesh and Packing facility at Bellary district of Karnataka State.

Rain Cements Limited., is a wholly owned Subsidiary of Rain Industries Limited.
Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

For all periods upto and including the year ended December 31, 2016 , the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP?).

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied.
Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the
Company’s Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows are provided in
note 46

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS effective as on
the Company's annual reporting date 31 December 2017 have been applied. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of
the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at January 1, 2016 being the “date of transition to Ind AS.

The standalone financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
February 26, 2018.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise
indicated. ‘

(iii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Derivative financial instruments,

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments) and

- Non-cash distribution liability.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

(iv) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and
appropriate changes are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding
the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period in which such changes are
made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

~ measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions

— recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

— useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

~ impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets

— decommissioning liability

— expected Credit loss - provision for doubtful debts

Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i.  Itisexpected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;
ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded
iii.  Itisexpected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for atleast 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i.  Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
iii.  Ttis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv.  The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalents. The Company's operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

(v) Measurement of fair value

Accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-
financial assets. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

For changes that have occurred between levels of hierarchy during the year, the Company re-assesses
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For changes that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy during the period the Company
re-assesses categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

b) Business combinations

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to
apply Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from January 1,2016. As such, Indian
GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill,
have been carried forward with minimal adjustment. The same first time adoption exemption is also
used for associates and joint ventures.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

b) Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquire at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair
values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.
However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the
basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively.

- Assets (or disposal Companys) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard.

- Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term
of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. If the business combination is achieved in
stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for
within equity.

¢) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

¢) Financial instruments (continued)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) as described above are measured at Fair Value through Profit and
Loss (FVTPL). This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCT or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at an individual asset level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non -recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

¢) Financial instruments (continued)
Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

(iii) Debt investments at FVOCI:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

(iv) Equity investments at FVOCI:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with
all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

¢) Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer, there is no continuing involvement, usually on delivery of the goods.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. This inter alia involves discounting
of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit terms. Sales tax/
Value added tax (VAT), Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own
account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the
government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the related services are performed in accordance
with contract terms.

The Company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account.
Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account, revenue includes excise

duty.

Note on GST: Consequent to the introduction of Goods and Services Tax (GST) with effect from July
1, 2017, Central Excise, Value Added Tax (VAT) etc. have been subsumed into GST.

Particulars For the year 2017 For the year 2016
Revenue from Operations 9,707.17 10,612.24
Less : Excise Duty (820.81) (1,566.82)
Sale of products excluding Excise duty 8,886.36 9,045.42

e) Other income
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method on time proportion method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Income from sale of Certified Emission Reduction (CERS) are recognised on conclusion of CER sale
to ultimate buyers.
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Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/deemed cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost
includes directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including its purchase price, import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent expenditure related to
an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future benefits from the existing
assets beyond its previously assessed standards of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1 January 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under long-term loans and advances as capital advances.

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method based on the
useful life of the assets as prescribed by Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013.For plant and
machinery based on the technical evaluation and assessment, the Company believes that the useful lives
adopted by it best represent the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use.
Accordingly, for these assets, the useful lives estimated by the Company are different from those
prescribed in the Schedule.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are sold
or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between net sales proceeds and the carrying amount, and are presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Asset Description Useful Life
Leasehold land 125 years
Buildings 3 to 77 years
Plant & Machinery 3 to 20years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 5to 10 years
Office Equipments 3 to5years




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

) Property, plant and equipment
Provision for site restoration

The Company provides for the estimated expenditure required to restore quarries and mines. The total
estimate of restoration expenses is apportioned over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is
made based on minerals extracted during the year.

Site restoration expenses is incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the quarries and mines.
The actual expenses may vary based on the nature of restoration and the estimate of restoration
expenditure.

The total estimate of restoration expenses is reviewed periodically, on the basis of technical estimates.

g) Intangible asset

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as at 1 January 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

Asset Description Useful Life

Software 3 years

h) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost (including prime cost, excise duty and other overheads incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition) and net realisable value. The
comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Raw materials, packing
materials and stores and spares are valued at cost computed on moving weighted average basis, after
providing for obsolescence, if any. The cost includes purchase price, inward freight and other incidental
expenses net of refundable duties, levies and taxes, where applicable. Raw materials, packing materials
and other supplies held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value.
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Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

h) Inventories (continued)

Finished goods and work in progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis and comprises material, labour and applicable overhead
expenses. The net realisable value of materials in process is determined with reference to the selling
prices of related finished goods Stores and spares are valued at cost determined on weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses

Traded goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Goods in transit
are valued at cost or below. Power banking units are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost
comprises the raw material cost allocated to power generation,

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
{(Cash Generating Unit or CGU) that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU
is the greater of its value in use and its net selling price. Value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end
of its useful life.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss in the respective
financial years, if the carrying amount of the assets or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject
to a maximum of amortised historical cost as per requirement of Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets".

j) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the gain/loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect
of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of
such a forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Any
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

k) Investments

Non-current investments are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary, if any,
in the value of such investments.

) Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to Government
administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme. The Company’s
contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which
the employee renders the related service. The Company has no further obligations beyond its monthly
contributions.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

1) Retirement and other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurements,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or curtailed, the resulting change in the benefit that relates to
the past service ('past service cost') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the
Statement of profit or loss. The Company recognises the gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when settlement occurs.

Compensated Absence Policy:

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward
a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or encash
the leaves during the period of employment or retirement or at termination of employment. The
Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders
the services that increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated
absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Company recognises accumulated
compensated absences based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Non-
accumulating compensated absences are recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Other long-term employee benefits

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuary as at December 3 1st every year using projected unit credit method
on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

m)Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. For arrangements
entered into prior to January 1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership vest in the Company are classified as finance leases. Such leases are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments
and The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other
financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the
interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

n) Earnings Per Share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) comprise net profit
after tax (and includes the post-effect of any extra ordinary items). The number of shares used in
computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they
have been issued at a later date. The number of shares used for computing the diluted EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year after considering the dilutive potential
equity shares.

o) Tax expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after

considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws)
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

In case of tax payable as Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT’) under the provisions of the Income-tax
Act, 1961, the credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when
and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the
period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT
credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the
aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

o) Tax Expenses (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences being the difference between the taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods subject to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future
taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been measured
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet
date.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re~-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

p) Statement of Cash Flows and Cash & cash equivalents

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

q) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economiic benefits expected to be received under it, are
recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of
such obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even ifthe likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. A contingent liability
recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions
above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

r) Dividend declared

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the
corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. Interim dividends are recorded as a liability on
the date of declaration by the Board of directors of the Company.

s) Recent accounting pronouncements

In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
{Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendments to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’. These
amendments are in accordance with the recent amendments made by International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) to IAS 7. The amendments are applicable to the Company from 1 January
2018.

Amendment to Ind AS 7:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet
the disclosure requirement. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the
effect on the financial statements is being evaluated.




“Kueduioo Surpjoy] oY) ‘oI SSLOSUPU] UIRy Aq PAUIEIqO SSUIMOLIOG [BIDISUILIOD [UId)Xs jsuteSe pa3pajd Supunoure juswidmbo pue jueld ‘Auadoid 3o s[rejap 10j 9¢ 10N 1§y (1
‘s3uTuIes paurejel JsureSe paysnipe uaaq sey oures ay Jo joeduiy “1eak snorasid sy Surmp Sununoooe Jueuoduiod i pamoj[oy sey Auedwo)) sy, (IF

“poLiad 3sBI] 9} 12A0 pajeroadop pue pue| Ployeses] Uo paronnsuod sZurping spnjouy (1)

HEN
PUILLY 79'9¢Ly 0L'6LE $8°S1 $€'09 |X9.444 - €915y 60°SL8 LTOTT'L PUILLY (d+V) 1210
61'ety L6°SE - - - - - L6°SE £5°108 1evly 61ty (g) ssexBoxd-ut-spiom [ender
S6'LVL'E $9°001°y 0L'6LE p8'S1 $€°09 1Tyiy - SE08Y'y 9S'¢L 96°S08 S6'LYL'E (V) [e10L
ev'e £6'8 80'C - 0T'9 8T8 - 10711 6£°9 L6V er'e wowdmbe 20410
91ty 65°6¢ L0'8 - 68'C 96'01 - 99°Ly 19 16°01 o'ty S[OIYS A
179 1£°99 £0'c - £e’0 9¢'¢ - €69 9¢°0 9s’L y1'79 SeIniXy pue S.miin,{
LY TI8°T 96'911°¢ §9'¢ece 8¢l y1°08 S6°LSE - 19°0v¥'€ 6L°LS £6'989 LY'118°C juowdmba pue jued
a4V SEovL 14X44 - 6L°0 £eey - 68°16L 19C 008 8YviL (mofaq (1) 210U 10§2y) SBUIP[INg
LE'SE 78'8¢ £€°0 - - ££°0 - Slee - 85°¢ LS'SE ployesey] -
0L'8L 6908 - - - - - 6908 - 66'1 0L°8L ployeat -
pue]
(v) yuawdinby pue juepq ‘Aypdorg
(ORI
m—cu 9107 9107 20N 13)3y) syuounsnlpy | reak .c—cm 9107 syuounsnlpy 9107
‘1o Adenuep | ‘1€ RqUIRNR( | ‘1€ BquRRg sSunuIed ‘1 Arenuep | ‘T¢ 1RqURR( | sjusunsnipy ‘1 Arenuep
i /suondpR@ | Ay} Jog / suonippy uondusaq
je sy 1e Sy JE Sy paurejal 0} je sy je sy / suopRpq 1B SY
JRJSUBIL UQ
}o0lg 19N uonePdxdo pajenunddy }oo[g $so1H
79°9¢1y 9°1£6°¢ LETLL - $8'L9 75°09% | OL'6LE 66'C0L'Y 66'79¢ 99°05¢§ 9IS’y (g@+v) 1e10L
L6°SE 0TSy - - - - - 0TSy £6'69C 91'6LT L6'SE () ssaxgoxd-ur-yiom reydery
S9°001'y 17°988°¢ LETLL - S8°LY TS°09y | OL°6LE 6L'859'Y 90°€6 0S'ILT SE'08Y'y (V) 18101
£6'8 111 01'¢ - 8L'S 088 80'C €91 w09 [4 8! 10°11 uowdinbs 20130
65'6¢ £6°6C 10°L1 - 0’1 y101 LO'8 12514 el o 99'LYy SO[OIYPA
1£°99 Yo'LL S1'8 - 910 8T¢ £0°¢ 6L'68 61°0 $9°91 7£69 SSIMXI} pue SAmn,{
96°911°¢ 81'816°C LET99 - 0'6S ¥L96E | S9°ETE SS6LSE 9¢'LL 0£91T 19°0v¥°€ Jueurdmbe pue juel]
SeovL £6°LTL L008 - 691 (44 3% 1244 00°808 S1'8 9TYT 68'16L (#o[aq (1) a30u 10§y sBurpiing
78'8¢ Yoy L9°0 - - ye0 £€0 16°1% - 9L'T ST6¢ PIOyasea] -
69708 6908 - - - - - 69°08 - - 69°08 PloyaaL] -
pue]
(v) yuwdwrdinba pue juepd ‘Kyedorg
9107 L107 L10T < N L107 L10T L1I0T
ST £
‘L€ QU | 1€ PqURN( | ‘T¢ PqUIdR(Q Moﬂ““w mw—“ﬂ”—«“ﬂw”& u.”«o_om ‘1 Arenuep | ‘1€ QUL mu\_“u—_em.u«moﬂwﬂ< wwmwﬂ__wmwwq ‘1 Arenuep d
130 I | I €] uondrsaq
e sy 1Sy e sy 0) T2JSHE 1O je sy B8y je sy
ooig PN uoneRAIda(q PAIBNUINIIY }oojg ssoan

:ssaagoad-urprom feyrde) pue juswdmba pue juerd ‘Ayrdoag :¢ 0N

PaIEIS SSIMIDYIO DISYM pue BIEp 2Jeys 1do0Xd ‘SUOI[IA seadny UeIpu] Ut die SJUNOWE {|y
(panunod) syuswdje)s [erdyueuyy oy jo 1red Sururio) sajoN

PINIUIY SJUIWI)) UIBY




LE'T 89°1 18°0 - 18°0 - 6v'C - (419! LE'1 [ejoL
LET 891 180 - 18°0 - 6v'C - [4%! LET IBMPOS
910¢T 9107 9107 9107 91017 [ [ 9107
‘10 Arenuep | ‘r¢ IQUII( | ‘Y€ IPqUID(J &MM.%M:W«V T84 9y} 10/ | ‘T Aaenuer | ‘I¢ J9qUIdNQ 3Mﬂ-”wﬂ:%< 3—“”&:.@4 ‘1 Lxenuep wondiioss
18 sy e sy e sV / suonspq 1e sy 1e sV / suonadpq / suonIppy 18 sy ondi a
yoorgq 19N UONBSIJIOWE PIJR[NUINIIY yoorg $s0.15)
89°1 vL'1 S6'1 - 149! 18°0 69°¢ - 01 oy’ [ejo L
891 L1 S6'l - I24N! 18°0 69°¢ - 0T'1 6v'C aremijog
9107 L10T L10T L10T L10T L10T
‘1€ QIR | ‘T€ IBQUINI( | ‘T € 1quIddR( ﬁ”ﬂﬂ.ﬂ:w@< 1834 9y} 10 | ‘T Adenuep | ‘I € JoquIddd( ﬁ“ﬂ””—wﬁ< SMM«“«ME,@A« ‘1 A1enuep d
e sy je Sy 'Sy / suondpd 18 sV 18 sV /suomdpQ | /suonippy 18 8V uondridsa(q
yoo[g 319N UOI}BSIJIOWE PIJB[NUINIIY yoo[g $80.15)

:83asse J[qISue)ul 1Y) AION

Pajels SSIMISYIO SISUYM PUR Blep a1eys 1dooxa ‘SuoIIA seadny UBIpU] UI 28 SIUNOWE [y
(Ponunuod) syusuId)e)s [erduRUl 3y} Jo 3red Sururioy sajoN
PO SIUIWI)) Urey




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated
As at As at As at
December 31,2017  December 31,2016  January 1, 2016

Note 5: Non-current investments

A. Investments in subsidiaires and Associates
(Unquoted instruments valued as cost unless stated otherwise)

Investments equity instruments:

Subsidiaires

Renuka Cement Limited 139.03 130.01 130.01
1,201,680 (December 31, 2016: 1,001,400; January 01,2016: 1,001,400)

equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Less: Provision for Impairment in value of Investments (120.00) (120.00) (120.00)
Associate
Rain Coke Limited (Refer note below) 67.62 67.62 67.62

6,762,600(December 31,2016:6,762,000; January 01, 2016: 6,762,000)
equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Investment in 12.5% Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs):

Subsidiairy

Rain Coke Limited (Refer note below) - 156.77 -
Nil (December 31, 2016: 15,677,000; January 1, 2016: Nil) CCDs of Rs. 10

each fully paid up

Associate

Rain Coke Limited (Refer note below) 156.77 - -
15,677,000 CCDs (December 31 2016: Nil; January 01, 2016: Nil) of Rs. 10

each fully paid up

B. Investments in others:
(Unquoted instruments valued as fair value through profit and loss unless stated otherwise)

Equity instruments

Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corporation Limited 16.00 16.00 16.00
134,000 (December 31, 2016: 134,000; January 01,2016 : 134,000) equity

shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Government securities

National Savings Certificates 0.19 0.19 0.14
Total 259.61 250.59 93.77
Aggregate amount of unquoted investements 259.61 250.59 93.77
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 120.00 120.00 120.00

Information about companies exposure to credit risk and fair value measurement is included in Note 44.

Note 6: Non-current loans
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits 42.67 34.19 100.96
Electricity deposit 195.78 195.78 157.28

Total 238.45 229.97 258.24




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
Alf amounts are in indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated
As at As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31,2016  January 1, 2016

Note 7: Other non-current financial assets

Non-current portion of bank balances (Refer Note 13) - 4.06 1.86
Interest accrued on deposits - 0.54 -
Advance paid for Debentures in Subsidiary Company - - 156.77

Total - 4.60 158.63

Note 8: Other tax assets

Advance tax 305.10 150.48 150.50
(net of provision for tax of Rs. 633.45) (December 31, 2016 : Rs. 341.14,
January 1, 2016 Rs. 153.04)

305.10 150.48 150.50
Note 9: Other non-current assets
Capital advances 5.94 26.12 115.58
Balances with Government authorities 27.56 28.25 28.17
Total 33.50 54.37 143.75
Note 10: Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 70.30 80.47 97.61
Work-in-progress 531.07 423.93 22241
Finished goods 80.90 120.46 132.75
Stores and spares 156.14 147.50 135.77
Packing materials 25.46 29.95 25.42
Fuel 151.79 265.24 224.67
Total 1,015.66 1,067.55 838.63
Goods-in-transit, included above
Raw materials 2.09 1.03 2.46
Stores and spares 2.27 4.19 5.14
Packing materials - 5.50 5.36
Fuel 3.17 27.16 26.66
Total 7.53 37.88 39.62
Note 11: Current investments
(unquoted at Fair Value through profit or loss)
Investment in mutual funds of:
Frankling templeton investments - - 25.22
ICICI prudiential flexible income-direct plan-growth - - 101.43
Birla sun life mutual fund - - 10.04
Reliance liquid fund-treasury plan-direct growth plan - growth option 10.00 - -
Total 10.00 - 136.69
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 10.00 - 136.69

Information about Companies exposure to credit risk is included in Note 45




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated
As at
December 31, 2017

As at
December 31, 2016

As at
January 1, 2016

Note 12: Trade reccivables

Secured 96.44 88.07 92.72
Unsecured, considered good 71.09 81.11 80.10
Unsecured, considered doubtful 21.64 19.18 18.41
189.17 188.36 191.23

Less : Credit notes for discounts (54.90) (124.88) (170.76)
134.27 63.48 20.47

Less: Provision for loss allowance (21.64) (19.18) (18.41)
Total 112.63 44.30 2.06

(1) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

(i) For trade receivables from related parties refer Note 42
(111) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 42

(iv) The company's exposure to credit and currency risk and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 45

The movement in the allowances for impairment is respect of trade receivable during the year was as follows

As at As at
December 31,2017  December 31, 2016
Opening balance (19.18) (18.41)
Loss allowance recognised during the period (2.46) 0.77)
Reversal during the period - -
Closing balance (21.64) (19.18)
Note 13: Cash and bank balances
A. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.24 0.23 0.21
Cheques/ drafts on hand 0.71 1.70 12.78
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 44.05 15.26 56.22
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 month or less) 99.00 120.00 252.00
144.00 137.19 321.21
B. Other bank balances
Balances held as margin money against guarantees and other commitments 21.08 18.38 14.73
Long term deposits 1,358.03 996.00 760.12
Less: Non-current portion of bank balances (Refer Note 7) - (4.06) (1.86)
1,379.11 1,010.32 772.99
Total [A+B] 1,523.11 1,147.51 1,094.20
Details of bank balances/deposits
Balances with banks available in term deposits with original maturity of less 143.05 135.26 308.22
than 3 months or less included under 'Cash and cash equivalents'
Bank deposits due to maturity within 12 months of the reporting date included 1,379.11 1,010.32 772.99
under 'Other Bank balances'
Bank deposits due to maturity after 12 months of the reporting date included - (4.06) (1.86)
under 'Other non-current assets' (Refer Note 7)
1,522.16 1,141.52 1,079.35
Note 14: Current loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advance to employees 0.40 0.32 0.63
Security deposits - 9.75 10.80
Total 0.40 10.07 11.43
Note 15: Other current financial assets
Interest accrued on deposits 39.14 23.82 23.92
39.14 23.82 23.92
gxpenses 5.85 7.94 6.13
s with Government authorities 68.60 18.02 126.52
dnge to supplier and service providers 214.99 139.05 103.50
4 2.53 5.39 7.30
291.97 170.40 243.45




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 17: Equity Share capital

As at As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 January 1, 2016
Number of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Shares Shares
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,000,000  500.00 50,000,000  500.00 50,000,000  500.00
Total 50,000,000 500.00 50,000,000 500.00 50,000,000  500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10 cach 29,805,000  298.05 29,805,000  298.05 29,805,000  298.05
Total 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000  298.05

Notes:

(i) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period:

As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Shares
As at beginning of the year 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05
Equity shares issued /(bought back) during the year - - - -
As at end of the year 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In case
of interim dividend the profits are distributed based on approval of Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to number of

equity shares held by the sharcholders.

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on August 9, 2017, have declared an interim dividend of Rs. 0.41/- per equity share i.e. 4.10% on
face value of Rs. 10/- per Equity Share fully paid up for the financial year ending December 31, 2017 (year ended December 31, 2016: Dividend of Rs. 9.00 per

equity share).

(iii) Shares held by helding company

As at As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 January 1, 2016
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Shares Shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held by
Holding Company - Rain Industries Limited along with its nominees 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05
29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05
(iv) Details of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
As at As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 January 1, 2016
o, o, o,
Name of the sharcholder Number of %o Number of %o Number of Yo
Shares Shares Shares
Rain Industries Limited along with its nominees 29,805,000 100% 29,805,000 100% 29,805,000 100%

(v) There are no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting

date.
(vi) No equity shares bought back during the last five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(vii) No Shares have been allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 18: Other equity

(i) Reserves and surplus

(a) Securities premium account

As at
December 31, 2017

As at
December 31, 2016

Opening balance 42433 424.33
Closing balance 424.33 424.33
(b) General reserve
Opening balance 526.64 480.97
Add: Transferred from retained earnings - 45.67
Closing balance 526.64 526.64
(¢) Retained earnings
Opening balance 2,252.79 2,142.03
Add: Profit for the year 374.89 495.12
2,627.68 2,637.15
Less : Interim dividend 12.22 268.25
Dividend distribution tax 2.49 54.60
Transferred to general reserve - 45.67
Adjustment on account of component accounting - 15.84
Closing balance 2,612.97 2,252.79
(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan
Opening balance (7.75) -
Add: Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/asset 9.54 (11.85)
Tax effect of above (3.30) 4.10
Closing balance 1.51) (7.75)
Total 3,562.43 3,196.01

a) Security premium :

The amount receicved in excess of face value of the equity shares is recogised in Securities premium. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions
of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, write-off equity related expenses like underwriting
costs etc.

b) General reserve :
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained eamnings for appropriation purposes. There is no policy of regular transfer.
As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to retained eamings.

(c) Retained earnings :
Retained earnings mainly represent all current and prior year profits as disclosed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
less dividend distribution and transfers to general reserve.

(d). Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
Comprises of actuarial gains/losses and return on plan assets excluding net interest income/ (expense).




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at As at

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 January 1, 2016
Note 19: Non-current borrowings
Deferred payment liabilities
Unsecured 721.98 757.92 806.56
Less: Current portion of non-current borrowings disclosed under 59.52 28.86 47.10
Note 24 - Other current financial liabilities

662.46 729.06 759.46

Deferred payment liabilities
Sales tax deferment represents interest free liability. Balance outstanding is repayable in 89 structured monthly instalments as per deferment
schedule (December 31, 2016 : 101 instalaments; January 1, 2016 : 113 instalaments).

Note 20: Other non-current financial liabilities

Advance from others 283.40 264.40 264.40

Total 283.40 264.40 264.40
The company's exposure to liquidity risk is included in Note 45

Note 21: Non-current provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences (refer note 41) 26.60 20.43 17.94
- Gratuity (refer note 41) 62.04 66.48 50.81

Provision - others

- Site restoration 89.04 84.83 80.43
Total 177.68 171.74 149.18
The movement in the site restoration provision during the year was as follows:

As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Balance as at the beginning of the year 84.83 80.43
Charge for the year 4.19 4.40
Utilised during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 89.02 84.83

Provision has been recognised for cost associated with restoration of mines post extraction of limestone.
Note 22: Other tax liabilities
Provision for tax 484.92 380.98 430.03

(net of advance tax Rs 1,113.92 (December 31,2016: Rs 1,278.08,
January 01, 2016 : Rs 1,039.03)

484.92 380.98 430.03
Note 23: Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 5.33 3.44 5.95
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 736.21 751.74 952.86
enterprises
Total 741.54 958.81

The Company's exposure to liquidity risk relating to trade payables is disclosed in Note no. 45

Ly~




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 January 1, 2016

Note 23: Trade payables (continued)

Disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown 5.33 3.44 5.95
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each

accounting year. ’

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the - - -
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along

with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year.

(¢) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in - - -
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day

during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of - ’ - -
each accounting year; and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are

actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of

a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Auditors have placed reliance on such
information provided by the management.

Note 24: Other current financial liabilities

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 19) 59.52 28.86 47.10
Trade and security deposits 10.40 10.62 10.98
Payables to employees 66.14 67.92 38.69
Deposits from contractors/customers 345.69 206.41 257.50
Others:

- Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 8.16 16.70 19.96

- Retention money 13.88 0.65 0.32
Total 503.79 331.16 374.55

The Company's exposure to liquidity risk relating to other financial liabilities in note no. 45

Note 25: Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits: :
- Compensated absences (refer note 41) - 71.90 3.11 8.44

Total 7.90 3.11 8.44

Note 26: Other current liabilities

Statutory remittances 194.88 251.76 264.14
Advance from customers 131.86 94.51 77.04
Provision for discounts 53.71 126.71 79.64
Total 380.45 472.98 420.82




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at As at

December 31,2017  December 31, 2016 January 01,2016
Note 27: Deferred taxes
Deferred tax liability
- on account of excess book depreciation and 783.02 810.74 730.31
tax depreciation
Deferred tax assets
- on account of employee benefits (30.10) (31.15) (26.71)
- on account of deferred payment liabilities (31.22) (31.22) (31.22)
- others (61.39) (59.08) (585.67)
Net deferred tax liability / (asset) 660.31 689.29 616.71
Movement in temporary differences:

Particul Balance as at R::?f:sm::rli:; p:l(::lt Recognised in OCI Balance as at
teulars January 1,2016 year g during the year December 31, 2016
Property, plant and equipment 730.31 80.43 - 810.74
Employee benefits (26.71) 0.34) (4.10) (31.15)
Deferred payment liabilities (31.22) - - (31.22)
Land indexation (21.48) (1.62) - (23.10)
Site restoration liability (27.83) (1.52) - (29.35)
Trade Receivables (6.37) 0.27) - (6.64)
616.71 76.68 4.10) 689.29

Balance as at

Recognised in profit

Recognised in OCI

Balance as at

Particulars January 1, 2017 or loss)it;ilng the during the year December 31, 2017

Property, plant and equipment 810.74 (27.72) - 783.02
Employee benefits (31.15) (2.25) 3.30 (30.10)
Deferred payment liabilities (31.22) - - (31.22)
Land indexation (23.10) - - (23.10)
Site restoration liability (29.35) (1.46) - (30.80)
Trade Receivables (6.64) (0.85) - (7.49)

689.29 (32.28) 3.30 660.31




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Note 28: Revenue from operations

Sale of products (inclusive of excise duty) 9,684.63 10,603.72
Other operating revenues [Refer Note (ii) below] 22.54 8.52
Revenue from operations (gross) 9,707.17 10,612.24
Notes:
(i) Sale of products comprises:
Sale of cement 9,682.94 10,600.15
Sale of fly ash 1.69 3.57
Total 9,684.63 10,603.72

(ii) Other operating revenues comprises:

Scrap sales 21.10 8.52
Rental income 1.44 -
Total 22.54 8.52

Note 29: Other income

Interest from banks on deposits 95.92 97.19
Dividend income from current investments at FVTPL 1.89 9.17
Other non-operating income:
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 15.36 0.61
Miscellaneous income 9.84 2.89
Total 123.01 109.86

Note 30 : Cost of material consumed
Material consumed :

Lime stone 285.48 258.41
Laterite 226.74 233.09
Gypsum 114.45 117.23
Iron ore 25.09 43.40
Dolomite/Bauxite 5.16 2.92
Fly ash 489.43 526.15
Others ‘ (7.45) 2.13
Captive consumption of cement (1.72) 4.15)
Total 1,137.18 1,179.18

Note 31: Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods 120.46 132.75
Work-in-progress 423.93 22241
544.39 355.16

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 80.90 120.46
Work-in-progress 531.07 423.93
611.97 544.39

(Increase)/decrease in stock (67.58) (189.23)




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Note 32: Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 385.92 376.85
Contribution to provident and other funds 35.77 32.78
Staff welfare expense 24.25 41.38
Total 445.94 451.01
Note 33: Finance costs
Interest expense 1.10 1.34
Other borrowing costs 0.32 0.36
Bank and finance charges 1.07 0.64
Total 2.49 2.34
Note 34: Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares 263.84 306.80
Consumption of packing materials 410.26 362.46
Change in excise duty on finished goods (6.35) 0.22)
Power and fuel 2,274.28 2,206.87
Repairs and maintenance 193.18 175.92
Insurance 12.04 11.24
Rent 52.95 50.03
Rates and taxes 23.81 4.66
Communication expenses 5.99 6.60
Travelling and conveyance 31.19 33.34
Printing and stationery 3.59 3.32
Freight outward 2,797.32 2,832.52
Other selling and distribution expenses 283.59 327.22
Consultancy charges 84.31 75.52
Payment to auditors [Refer Note below] 1.82 1.89
Directors' sitting fees 0.74 0.83
Commission to directors 5.00 12.50
Loss allowance for doubtful trade receivables 2.46 0.82
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 16.74 9.13
Miscellaneous expenses 62.86 100.44
6,519.62 6,521.89
Note:
Payments to the auditors comprise (excluding service tax and GST):
Audit fees 1.35 1.35
Limited review fees 0.45 0.45
Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 0.09
Total 1.82 1.89




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Note 35: Income tax

Amount recognised in Statement of profit or loss
Current tax

(i) Tax for current year 232.09 190.00

(ii) Minimum alternate tax credit utilisation* (66.29) -

Net current tax 165.80 190.00
Deferred tax (32.28) 76.68
Total 133.52 266.68
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax 508.41 761.8
Enactd tax rate 34.61% 34.61%
Tax expense as per enacted tax rate 175.95 263.64
Effect of:
Tax impact on non-deductible expenses 9.19 3.04
Minimum alternate tax credit utilisation* (66.29) -
Others 14.67 -

133.52 266.68

* Unutilised portion pertaining to earliers years has utilised against tax payable under normal provisons of the Income Tax Act

during the year.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 36.: Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
(I) Contingent liabilities
Matters under dispute
- Income tax 174.50 174.50
- Sales Tax, Service Tax and Excise Duty related matters under dispute 76.74 76.51
- Fuel Surcharge Adjustment levied by Electricity Distributing Companies 34.57 34.57
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 628.47 605.04
914.28 890.62
Guarantees given by the Compny
- Corporate guarantees issued (refer below for details) 1,917.90 4,073.40
(II) Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [net of capital 41.72 92.07
advance Rs. 5.94 (December 31, 2016: Rs. 26.12]
Summary of Guarantees given:
. As at December 31, 2017 As at December 31, 2016
Corporate Guarantees issued for - -
lfoans availed by: Guarantee Contingent Guarantee Contingent -
Liability Liability
Rain Commodities USA Inc., fellow - - 1,494.90 675.90
subsidiary — (Refer note (a) below for
security given by the company)
Rain Industries Limited Holding 1,917.90 1,917.90 3,397.50 3,397.50
company (Refer note (b) below for
security given by the company)
Total 1,917.90 1,917.90 4,892.40 4,073.40

Note: Contingent liability represents loan amount outstanding.

a) Subservient charge was created on the Company's moveable assets against loan avialed by Rain Commodities USA Inc., fellow subsidiary.
The Loan was availed by Rain Commodities (USA) Inc., for the purpose of repayment loan to Rain Industries Limited and infusion of funds into

Rain CII Carbon LLC directly or through subsidiaries as debt/equity.

b) The immovable assets and movable assets of the Company, all current assets of the Company are charged against loan availed by Rain

Industries Limited for purpose of investment in Rain Commodities USA Inc.

Note 37: Operating leases

The company has entered into various cancellable operating lease agreements for storage facilities. The lease rentals amounting to Rs. 52.95
(December 31, 2016 - Rs. 50.03) paid under such agreements have been charged off in the statement of profit and loss.

Note 38: Earnings per Share (EPS)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

a. Profit for the year 374.89 495.12

b. Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each outstanding during the year 29,805,000 29,805,000

Earnings per Share )

¢. Basic and Diluted - [a]/[b] - (Rs.) 12.58 16.61

Note 39: During the year, the Company has given the following donations to the political parties

Name of party For the year ended | For the year ended
December 31, 2017 | December 31, 2016

Communist Party of India 0.30 0.35

Total 0.30 0.35

Note .40:

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) Committee has been formed by the company. The
proposed areas for CSR activities, as per the CSR policy of the company are promotion of education, rural development activities, medical
facilities, employment and ensuring environmental sustainability which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The

Company is required to spend a minimum amount of Rs 15.60 (December 31,2016: Rs 11.50)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31,2017 | December 31, 2016
Amount to be spent 15.60 11.50
Amount paid in cash 15.60 26.82

- "pAmount yet to be paid in cash




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 41: Employee Benefits

a)

b)

Defined contribution plans:

The company deposits an amount determined at a fixed percentage of basic pay every month to the state administered Provident fund, Employee State
Insurance (ESI) for the benefit of employees. The contributions payable to these plans by the company are at the rates specified in the rules of the

schemes.

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as follows:

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particulars December 31,2017 | December 31,2016
Provident fund paid to the authorities 22.21 22.45
Employee state insurance paid to the authorities 1.89 0.71
Contribution to other funds (Employee welfare etc.) 1.16 0.69

Total 25.26 23.85

Defined benefit plans -Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, government by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Entitles an employee, who has rendered
at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six

months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

The actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been carried out as at balance sheet date. The following table sets
forth the status of the various defined benefit plans of the company and the amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Present value of funded obligation 84.15 88.51
Less: Fair value of plan assets (22.11) (22.03)
Net liability 62.04 66.48
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (recognised in employee benefits expense):
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Current service cost 6.36 5.26
Interest cost 4.15 3.67
Total 10.51 8.93

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particulars December 31,2017 | December 31,2016
Actuarial loss/(gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation:
Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising from change in financial assumptions (5.04) 6.90
Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising on account of experience changes (5.25) 4.95
Actuarial gain/(loss) on remeasurement of planned asset:
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.75 -
Total gain/(loss) 9.54) 11.85
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the obligations:
Particulars Asat As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Opening defined benefit obligation 88.51 71.43
Current service cost 6.36 5.26
Interest Cost 5.49 5.19
Actuarial loss/(gain) (10.29) 11.85
Amount paid to employees (5.91) (5.22)
Closing defined benefit obligation 84.15 88.51
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets:
Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Opening fair value of plan assets 22.03 20.62
Expected return on plan assets . 1.33 1.52
| ..Contribution by employer %%’*@ 5.41 4.50
o %gggﬁigmm on plan assets {}% (0.75) 0.60
Aimourit paid to employees - (5.91) (5.22)
Closi‘k‘gﬂ@@r value of plan assets 2 ! 22.11 22.03
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
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41 Employee Benefit (Continued)
The details of investments in plan assets are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Life Insurance Corporation of India 100% 100%
Principal Actuarial assumptions used:
. As at As at
Particulars December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Discount rates on benefit obligations 7.55% 6.65%
Expected salary increase rates 6.00% 6.00%

Sensitivity analysis:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts for the year ended December 31, 2017 shown below:

Particulars Increase Decrease
Discount rate (50 bps on DBO) (2.58) 2.74
Future salary growth (50 bps on DBO) 2.58 (2.46)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts for the year ended December 31, 2016 shown below.

Particulars Increase Decrease
Discount rate (50 bps on DBO) 2.71) 2.88
Future salary growth (50 bps on DBO) 2.71 (2.58)

Although the analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

The estimates of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation takes into account factors like inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. The expected return on plan assets is based on actuarial expectation of the
average long term rate of return expected on investments of the Funds during the estimated term of the obligations. The principal actuarial
assumptions used for the computation of defined plan are also used for the computation of compensated absences of long term benefit.

The expected contribution payable to the plan next year is Rs 8.00

As at December 31, 2017 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.30 years.

¢) Compensated absences

The company provides for accumulation of compensated absences by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a portion
of the unutilized compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per company policy. The Group records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement.

The following table sets forth the status of the compensated absences:

i As at As at
Particulars December 31,2017 | December 31, 2016
Net Liability :
- Current 7.90 3.11
- Non Current 26.60 20.43
34.50 23.54
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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Note 42: Related Party Disclosures

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship

(i) |Holding Company Rain Industries Limited (RIL)

(ii) |Subsidiaries Renuka Cement Limited (RenCL)

Moonglow Company Business Inc, (Moonglow) (Merged with RIL
with effect from 19 November 2016)

(iii) |Associate Rain Coke Limited (Rcoke)

(iv) |Entities Under Common Control Rain Cll Carbon (Vizag) Limited (RCCVL)
Rain Commodities USA Inc. (RCUSA)
Pragna Priya Foundations (PPF)

(v) |Enterprise where key managerial personnel along with their relatives Rain Enterprises Private Limited (REPL)
exercise significant influence Nivee Property Developers Pvt Ltd (NPDPL)
Arunachala Logistics Pvt Limited (ALPL)
(vi) |Key Managerial Personnel Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy - Chairman

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy - Managing Director
Mr. N. Jagan Mohan Reddy - Director

Mr. K. Saipavan - Company Secretary

Mr. G.N.V.S.R.R Kumar - Chief Financial Officer

(vii) |[Non-executive directors Ms. Nirmala Reddy- Independent Director
Mr. G. Krishna Prasad - Independent Director

b) Transactions with related parties:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31,2017 | December 31, 2016

Purchases and services (net of reimbursements) from:

1. Rain Cll Carbon Vizag Ltd- Purchase of power 110.27 163.27
2. Rain Cll Carbon Vizag Ltd-Purchase of Petcoke 26.63 17.75
3. Rain Industries Limited - Shared Services Expenses 75.75 59.95
4. Rain Industries Limited- Lease Rent 431 -

5. Rain Industries Limited- Reimbursement of Expenditure - 0.47
6. Arunachla Logistics Pvt Ltd - Freight and Services 3,172.55 3,051.04
Sale of cement:

1. Rain CII Carbon Vizag Ltd 5.60 528
2. Rain Entertainments Pvt Ltd 0.70 2.13
3. Pragnya Priya Foundation 3.94 -
4. Nivee Property Developers Pvt Ltd 28.21 3.63
5. Arunachla Logistics Pvt Ltd 1.44 1.75
Other operating income:

1. Arunachla Logistics Pvt Ltd - Rental Income 0.30 0.18

Managerial remuneration:
(i) Short-term employee benefits

a) Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 26.22 48.45
b) Mr. G.N.V.S.R.R Kumar 5.80 5.61
¢) Mr. K. Saipavan 0.61 0.60

(ii) Post-employment benefits
*Refer note below

Dividend paid:

Rain industries Limited 12.22 268.25
Corporate guarantee (released)/ given on behalf of
1. Rain Industries Limited (1,284.34) 2,044.70
2. Rain Commodities USA Inc. (1,494.90) -
Subscription of Investments:
1. Renuka Cements Limited 9.01 -
2. Rain Coke Limited - 156.77
Donations given:

Pragya Priya Foundation 7.38 10.21

Remuneration to Independent Directors (Sitting fees):
1. Ms. Nirmala Reddy
2. Mr. G. Krishna Prasad

0.34
0.34

s




Rain Cements Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 42: Related Party Disclosures (continued)

* The managerial personnel are covered by the Company's gratuity policy, personal accident insurance policy, mediclaim insurance policy taken
and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the Company. The proportionate premium paid towards these policies and
provision made for leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in the aforementioned disclosures as these are
not determined on an individual basis.

Also refer to Note 46(3)(2) for details of scheme of arrangement between Moonglow Company Business Inc., Rain Industries Limited, Rain
Cements Limited and their respective Shareholders and Creditors in terms of the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 1956/ Companies Act,
2013, for amalgamation of Moonglow Company Business Inc., with Rain Industries Limited during the previous year.

The Group has the following dues from / to related parties:

Particulars As at As at
December 31,2017 | December 31, 2016

Amounts receivable from:

a) Rain Entertainments Pvt Ltd 0.11 0.19

b) Pragnya Priya Foundation 0.29 -

¢) Nivee Property Developers Pvt Ltd 7.90 -

Amounts payable to:

a)Arunachala Logistics Pvt. Limited 9.68 51.84

b) Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 5.00 12.50

Corporate guarantee given on behalf of:

a) Rain Industrieas Limited 1,917.90 3,397.50

b) Rain Commodities USA Inc. - 1,494.90

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and resulting outstanding balances are to be settled in case within 60
days of the reporting date. None of the balance is secured.

Note 43: Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder

’

value.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The Board of
Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'Net debt' to 'equity". For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. The Company's Net debt to equity ratio is as

follows.
Particulars As at
December 31,2017 December 31, 2016 January 01, 2016
Total borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents 577.98 620.73 485.35
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the company 3,860.48 3,494.06 3,345.38
Net debt to equity ratio 0.15 0.18 0.15

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any

interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
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Note 44: Financial value measurements:

The following table shows the financial instruments by category carrying and fair value hierarchy:

As at December 31, 2017:

Financial instruments by category

Fair value hierarchy

Particulars Amortised cost FVTPL Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Investments 243.42 26.19 269.61 10.19 - 16.00
Loans 238.85 - 238.85 - - -
Trade receivables 112.63 - 112.63 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 144.00 - 144.00 - - -
Bank balances other than above 1,379.11 - 1,379.11 - - -
Other financial assets 39.14 - 39.14 - - -
2,157.15 26.19 | 2,183.34 10.19 - 16.00
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 721.98 - 721.98 - - -
Trade payables 741.54 - 741.54 - - -
Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities 727.66 - 727.66 - - -
of long-term borrowings)
2,191.18 - 2,191.18 - - -
As at December 31, 2016:
Particulars Financial instruments by category Fair value hierarchy
Amortised cost FVTPL Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Investments 234.40 16.19 250.59 0.19 - 16.00
Loans 240.04 - 240.04 - - -
Trade receivables 44.30 - 44.30 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 137.19 - 137.19 - - -
Bank balances other than above 1,010.32 - 1,010.32 - - -
Other financial assets 28.42 - 28.42 - - -
1,694.67 16.19 | 1,710.86 0.19 - 16.00
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 757.92 - 757.92 - - -
Trade payables 755.18 - 755.18 - - -
Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities 566.70 - 566.70
of long-term borrowings) - - -
2,079.80 - 2,079.80 - - -

As at January 1, 2016:

Financial instruments by category

Fair value hierarchy

Particulars Amortised cost | FVTPL | Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Investments 77.63 152.83 23046 136.83 - 16.00
Loans 269.67 - 269.67 - - -
Trade receivables 2.06 - 2.06 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 321.21 - 321.21 - - -
Bank balances other than above 772.99 - 772.99 - - -
Other financial assets 182.55 - 182.55 - - -
1,626.11 152.83 | 1,778.94 136.83 - 16.00
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 806.56 - 806.56 - - -
Trade payables 958.81 - 958.81 - - -
Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities 591.85 - 591.85
of long-term borrowings) - - -
2,357.22 - 2,357.22 - - -

Note:

The carrying amounts of Non-current investments, trade receivables, loan receivable, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade payables and
other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their face values.

Measurement of fair values:

—Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

g&uga,m

Level 3yinputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

deriv%}dﬁr m prices).

QT‘{E quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.
.\inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as ,‘ )
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Note 45: Financial Risk Management

The Company has put in place risk management systems as applicable to the respective operations. The following explains the objective
and processes of the of the Company. The Company has a system based approach to risk management, anchored to policies and
procedures and internal financial controls aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of key financial risks (such
as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) that may arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing and
financing activities. Accordingly, the Company’s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed
within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulation. It
also secks to drive accountability in this regard.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counter-party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or
obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as
concentration risks and arises primarily from trade receivables, investments, and balances with banks. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is equal to the carrying value of these financial assets.

The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The Company has a policy of dealing only
with credit worthy counter parties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the
customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk
assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness
of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company limits its exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivable by establishing a maximum credit period of 21 days. Moreover, the receivables balance is backed by an
appropriate amount of deposit collected from each customers and the Company transfers some portion of the discount to the security
deposit of the customer which will be paid at the time of termination of the contract or discontinuance of business. The default in
collection as a percentage of total receivable is very low.

The age wise break up of trade receivables, net of allowances is given below:

Particulars 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 01-Jan-16
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 70.94 110.00 109.70
Receivables that are past due but not impaired:
Past due 0-30 days 15.39 10.75 8.09
Past due 31-60 days 25.49 17.21 9.67
Past due 61-90 days 8.41 5.93 4.38
Past due over 90 days 68.94 44.47 59.39
118.23 78.36 81.53
Gross receivables 189.17 188.36 191.23
Credit impaired
Loss allowance (21.64) (19.18) (18.41)
Net receivables before credit notes 167.53 169.18 172.82

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the trade receivable as of December 31, 2017, 31 December 2016 and January 01,

2016. There is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in subsidiaries and liquid securities. The Company does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific

industry sectors or specific country risks.

Balances with banks

kY
intemal;’om and domestic credit rating agencies.
W
¥
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Note 45: Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation. The Company’s treasury department is
responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are
overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of
expected cash flows.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt investments at an amount in
excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities (other than trade payables). The Company also monitors the level of expected cash
inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities at the reporting date. The
amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payment and excludes impact of netting arrangements (if any):

As at December 31, 2017
Particulars Contractual cash flows
Carrying value | Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 3-5years | 6-10 years Total
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 721.98 59.52 54.10 320.37 287.99 721.98
Trade payables 741.54 741.54 - - - 741.54
Other financial liabilities (excluding current 727.66 444.26 283.40 - - 727.66
maturities of long-term borrowings)
Total 2,191.18 1,245.32 337.50 320.37 287.99 | 2,191.18
As at December 31, 2016
Particulars Contractual cash flows
Carrying value | Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 3-5years | 6-10 years Total
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 757.92 28.86 59.52 235.58 433.96 757.92
Trade payables 755.18 755.18 - - 755.18
Other financial liabilities (excluding current 566.70 302.30 - 264.40 - 566.70
maturities of long-term borrowings)
Total 2,079.80 1,086.34 59.52 499.98 433.96 | 2,079.80
Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect the Company’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk arising on account of mismatch between the currencies in which the financial instruments are denominated and the
functional currency of the Company. The Company's exposure to currency risk is negligible as the Company does not have any transactions
which is denominated in currency other than its functional currency except certain coal imports during the year. There are no hedged or
unhedged foreign currency receivable/ payables as at balance sheet dates and all the assets of the Company are located in India.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company's exposure to interest rate risk is nil as the Company does not have any financial asset or liability which is at
variable rate on interest.
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Note 46: Explanation to transition to Ind AS

As stated in Note 2, these are the Companies first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other
relevant provisions of the Act (‘previous Indian GAAP’).

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 including the
comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. January 1, 2016.

In preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at 1 January 2016 and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with previous Indian GAAP. This note explains the principal
adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with previous Indian GAAP, and how the transition from previous
Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

A. Optional exemptions availed
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the
following exemptions:

1) Deemed cost for property plant and equipment and intangible assets:

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to continue with the carrying value for all its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at
the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making the necessary
adjustments for the de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by the Ind AS 38 intangible assets.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of'its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

2) Business combinations:

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date. This provides relief
from retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combination prior to the transition date. The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103
exemption for the business combination occurring prior to the transition date. Accordingly, business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not
been restated.

3) Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Ind AS 101 has option to measure the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 at either:
(a) Fair value on date of transition; or

(b) Previous gap carrying values

The Company has opted for fair value of investments in subsidiaries and associates as on the date of transition.

B. Mandatory exemptions

1) Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the previous Indian GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the
estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not required
under previous Indian GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates considered in
preparation of the financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

- Discounted value of liability for decommissioning cost.

2) Sales tax deferment
Under previous GAAP, interest free sales tax deferment loan was carried at cost. Under Ind AS, such interest free loans have been carried at previous GAAP
amount at the date of transition.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated
Note 46: Explanation to transition to Ind AS (continued)

3) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions for Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or afier the date of
transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows first time adopter to apply the derecognition requirements provided that the information needed to apply Ind
AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past Ind AS 101 retrospectively from the date of entity's choosing, transactions was
obtained at the time of nitially accounting for the transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS. Ind AS 101 requires an entity
to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exists at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Reconciliation of equity as reported under previous Indian GAAP and that computed under Ind AS:

. As at As at
Particulars January 01, 2016 December 31, 2016
Equity as per previous Indian GAAP 7,698.99 3,801.66
Adjustments:

Site restoration liability (note 1) (80.43) (84.83)
Merger of Moonglow with holding company (note 2) (4,015.29) -
Fair value of investments (note 4) (120.00) (120.00)
Tax adjustments (note 6) (138.97) (102.77)
Others (note 4) 1.08 -
Equity as per Ind AS 3,345.38 3,494.06

Reconciliation between total comprehensive as reported under previous Indian GAAP and Ind AS for the year ended December 31, 2016:

For the year ended

Particulars December 31, 2016
Net profit under previous Indian GAAP 456.66
Adjustments:
Reclassifications of net actuarial loss on defined obligation to other comprehensive 11.85
income (note 3)
Provision for site restoration (note 1) (4.40)
Tax adjustments (note 7) 32.09
Others (1.08)
Profit for the year as per Ind AS 495.12
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) as per Ind AS (7.75)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 487.37
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Note 46: Explanation to transition to Ind AS (continued)

Reconciliation between previous GAAP ancd Ind AS

Ind As 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows from prior periods. The following tables represents
the reconciliation from previous GAAP to Ind AS

Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition (January 01, 2016)

Effect of transition

Particulars Notes Previous GAAP to Ind AS Ind AS

ASSETS

1. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3747.95 - 3,74795

(b) Capital work-in-progress 423.19 - 423,19

(c) Other intangible assets 1.37 - 1.37

(d) Financial assets .

(i) Investments 2,4 4229.06 (4,135.29) 93.77

(ii) Loans 258.24 - 258.24

(iii) Other financial assets 158.63 - 158.63

(e) Other tax assets (net) 150.50 - 150.50

(f) Other non-current assets 143.75 - 143.75
9,112.69 (4,135.29) 4,977.40

2. Current assets

(a) Inventories 838.63 838.63

(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 4 135.61 1.08 136.69

(i1) Trade receivables 2.06 - 2.06

(1ii) Cash and cash equivalents 321.21 - 321.21

(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 772.99 - 772.99

(v) Loans 11.43 - 11.43

(vi) Other financial assets 23.92 - 23.92

(c) Other current assets 243.45 - 243 .45
2,349.30 1.08 2,350.38

Total 11,461.99 (4,134.21) 7,327.78

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Equity

(a) Equity share capital 298.05 - 298.05

(b) Other equity 7400.94 (4,353.61) 3,047.33
7,698.99 (4,353.61) 3,345.38

2. Liabilities '

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 759.46 - 759.46

(ii) Other financial liabilities 264.40 264.40

(b) Provisions 1 68.75 80.43 149.18

(c) Deferred tax liability (net) 7 477.74 138.97 616.71

(d) Other tax liabilities (net) 430.03 - 430.03
2,000.38 219.40 2,219.78

Current liabilities '

(a) Financial hiabilities

(i) Trade payables 958.81 - 958.81

(ii) Other financial liabilities 374.55 - 374.55

(b) Provisions 8.44 - 8.44

(c) Other current liabilities 420.82 - 420.82
1,762.62 - 1,762.62

TOTAL 11,461.99 (4,134.21) 7,327.78

gy~
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Note 46: Explanation to transition to Ind AS (continued)

Reconciliation between previous GAAP ancd Ind AS (continued)

Reconciliation of equity as at December 31, 2016

Particulars Notes

ASSETS

1. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress

(c) Other intangible assets

(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments 4

(i1) Loans

(iii) Other financial assets
(e) Other tax assets (net)
(f) Other non-current assets

2. Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial assets

(1) Investments

(i1) Trade receivables

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(v) Loans

(vi) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

Total

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity

2. Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(i1) Other financial liabilities

(b) Provisions 1
(c) Deferred tax liability (net) 6

(d) Other tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(1) Trade payables

(ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions

(c) Other current liabilities

TOTAL

Effect of transition

Previous GAAP to Ind AS Ind AS
4,100.65 4,100.65
35.97 - 3597
1.68 - 1.68
370.59 (120.00) 250.59
229.97 - 229.97
4.60 4.60
150.48 - 150.48
54.37 - 54.37
4,948.31 (120.00) 4,828.31
1067.55 - 1,067.55
4430 - 44.30
137.19 - 137.19
1010.32 - 1,010.32
10.07 - 10.07
23.82 - 23.82
170.40 170.40
2,463.65 - 2,463.65
7,411.96 (120.00) 7,291.96
298.05 - 298.05
3,503.61 (307.60) 3,196.01
3,801.66 (307.60) 3,494.06
729.06 - 729.06
264.40 - 264.40
86.91 84.83 171.74
586.52 102.77 689.29
380.98 - 380.98
2,047.87 187.60 2,235.47
755.18 - 755.18
331.16 - 331.16
3.11 - 3.11
47298 472,98
1,562.43 - 1,562.43
7,411.96 (120.00) 7,291.96
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Note 46: Explanation to transition to Ind AS (continued)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2016

Notes

Income
Revenue from operations 5
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 1
Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Excise duty 5
Employee benefits eXpense 3
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses 5

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expense / (benefit)
1. Current tax

2. Deferred tax 6

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income/(loss)

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 3
(b) Income tax relating to Remeasurement as defined benefit

plans 6

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Effect of transition

Previous GAAP to Ind AS Ind AS

9,550.84 1,061.40 10,612.24
109.86 - 109.86
9,660.70 1,061.40 10,722.10
1,174.78 4.40 1,179.18
3.27 - 3.27
(189.23) - (189.23)
- 1,566.82 1,566.82
462.86 (11.85) 451.01
2.34 - 2.34
425.02 - 425.02
7,026.23 (504.34) 6,521.89
8,905.27 1,055.03 9,960.30
755.43 6.37 761.80
190.00 - 190.00
108.77 (32.09) 76.68
298.77 (32.09) 266.68
456.66 38.46 495.12

- (11.85) (11.85)

- 4.10 4.10

- ¢ (7.75) (7.75)

- (7.75) (7.75)
456.66 30.71 487.37
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Notes to Transition to Ind AS

1) Site restoration liability

In line with the requirement of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, for creating a provision towards the costs of dismantling and
removing the item of property, plant and equipment and restoring the site on which it is located at the time the item is acquired or constructed, Ind AS 16 requires
that the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located should be included in the cost of the
respective item of property, plant and equipment.

2) Merger of Moonglow with holding company

Moonglow Company Business Inc, a step down wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Industries Limited (“Ultimate Holding Company”) and subsidiary of the
Company, amalgamated with the Rain Industries Limited, with effect from April 1, 2015 (“the appointed date™). The Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at
Hyderabad for the states of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh vide its order dated July 29, 2016 granted its approval for Scheme of Arrangement between
Moonglow Company Business Inc. (Step down wholly owned subsidiary), Rain Industries Limited (Ultimate Holding Company), Rain Cements Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors in terms of the provisions of Section(s) 391 — 394 read with Section 78, 100 to 103 of the
Companies Act, 1956/ Companies Act, 2013 for amalgamation of Moonglow Company Business Inc., with Rain Industries Limited. Since the Company, was
wholly owned by Rain Industries Limited, no shares were exchanged to effect the amalgamation and the consideration is nil. The amalgamation has resulted in
transfer of assets, liabilities and reserves in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

Particulars Amount

Assets !

Investments in Moonglow Company Business Inc., 4,015.29

Less: Consideration received -
4,015.29

Adjusted to (as per scheme):

Capital reserve 2,609.57

Securities premium 1,405.72

Since, the merger of Moonglow with holding Company fall under Ind AS 103 (Appendix C) deals with accounting for combination of entities or businesses
under common control. As per Appendix C, Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholders that
control the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition has occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. Accordingly, merger of
Moonglow with holding company has accounted as the transfer of interest of the Company in Moonglow has happended on 1 Janaury 2016.

3) Actuarial gain and loss

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits
otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive
income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

4) Fair value of investments

Under the previous GAAP, non-current investments in subsidiaries and associates were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the value
of such investinents. The Company has opted for fair value of investments as the cost of investments on the date of transition. The Company has performed the
fair valuation exercise and accounted for the difference between fair value and carrying value as on transition date. Accordingly non-current investments has
decreased by Rs. 120 as at 1 January 2016 and Rs. 120.00 as at 31 December 2017.

The Company has fair valued its current investment in accordance with Ind AS.

5) Adjustments to Revenue and other expenses

Revenue
Particulars For the year ended
December 31, 2016
Revenue from operations as per Previous GAAP 9,550.84
Add excise duty 1,566.82
(Less) Discounts (505.42)
Revenue from operations as per IND AS 10,612.24
Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended
December 31, 2016
Other expenses as per Previous GAAP 7,026.23
Less discounts (505.42)
Less: Reversal fair valuation gain on disposal of current investments 1.08
Other Expenses as per IND AS 6,521.89

Discounts
Under the previous GAAP scheme based discounts amounting to Rs.505.42 million were grouped under other expenses, however, under Ind AS, these expenses
are netted off against sale of goods. There is no impact on the total equity and profit.

ise duty
i eysﬁ ¢ pl(,ViOUS GAAP, revenue from salc oi ploducts was p1esented exclusive of excise duty Under Ind AS revenue from sale of goods is,jxesented
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Note 46: Explanation to transition to Ind AS (continued)

6) Tax: Tax adjustments include deferred tax impact on account of differences between previous Indian GAAP and Ind AS and deferred tax on land indexation.

7)Cash flow statement: The transaction from previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.

Note 47: Segment reporting

The Company’s operations predominantly consist of manufacture and sale of cement. Hence there are no reportable segments under Ind AS 108. During the year
under report, substantial part of the Company’s business has been carried out in India. The conditions prevailing in India being uniform, no separate geographical

disclosures are considered necessary.

Note 48: Guarantees given to related parties

Disclosure of Corporate guarantees given as per provisions of Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

a) Guarantees on behalf of Rain Industries Limited

. As at December 31,
Particulars 2017 2016
(a) As at the beginning of the financial year 3,397.50 3,979.80
(b) Given during the financial year - 2,044.70
¢) Repaid during the financial year (1,284.34) (2,653.20)
(d) Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (195.26) 26.20
(e) As at the end of the financial year (restated at closing rate) 1,917.90 3,397.50
a) Guarantees on behalf of Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
(a) As at the beginning of the financial year 1,494.90 1,459.26
(b) Given during the financial year - -
¢) Repaid during the financial year (1,494.90) -
(d) Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss - 35.64
(e) As at the end of the financial year (restated at closing rate) - 1,494.90
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